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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Updater Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Updater Services Limited (hereinafter referred
to as the (“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information in which are included the separate financial statements of erstwhile Stanworth Management
Private Limited ('SMPL’) and Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited (‘TSSPL’) for the year ended 31
March 2025 pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation of SMPL and TSSPL with the Holding Company,
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) vide its Order dated 8 May 2025 with the
appointed date of 1 April 2024. The financial statements of SMPL and TSSPL (‘components’) for the
year ended 31 March 2025 have been audited by another firm of chartered accountants (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of
such subsidiaries and components as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2025, of its consolidated profit and
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
~ consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered -
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other Matters” section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Basis for Opinion section, we have determined matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

Registered Office:

B S R & Co. (a partnership firm with Registration No. BA61223) converted into B S R & Co. LLP (a 14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) with effect from October 14, 2013 Center, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Updater Services Limited

See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group is primarily engaged in the business
of providing facility management services and
business support services.

Revenues from facility management service
and business support services contracts are
recognised in  accordance with the
requirements of Ind-AS 115, "Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” as and when the
Group satisfies performance obligations by
rendering the promised services to its
customers.

The performance obligations in the contracts
are fulfilled based on customer acceptances for
delivery of work/ attendance of resources,
where applicable, or as per terms of
arrangements entered with the customers.

Inappropriate assessment could lead to risk of
revenue being recognized before satisfaction
of performance obligation by the Group.

The Group and its external stakeholders focus
on revenue as a key performance indicator of
the Group. Timing of revenue recognition is a
key audit matter as there could be incentives or
external pressures to meet expectations
resulting in revenue being overstated or
recognized before the control has been

In view of the significance of the matter we applied
the following audit procedures in this area, amongst
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence:

» Obtained an understanding of the process followed
by the Group for measurement and recognition of
revenue.

> Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition accounting policies with
reference to the relevant accounting standards.

» Evaluating the design and implementation of key
internal financial controls in relation to timing of
revenue recognition and tested the operating
effectiveness of such controls for selected samples;

 Performed test of details by selecting samples of
revenue transactions recorded during the year using
statistical sampling. We assessed fulfiment of
performance obligations by verifying the underlying
documents which included contract with customers,
invoices, customer acceptances for delivery of work/
attendance of resources etc., where applicable;

* Inspected the credit notes/reversals of revenue, if
any, in the subsequent period to assess if revenue is
appropriately recognised in the period in which
related service is rendered;

= Scrutinised journal entries posted to revenue |
account on a sample basis, based upon specific risk
based criteria to identify unusual or irregular items.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and auditor’s reports thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor’'s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

B
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Updater Services Limited

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
-reportthatincludes-ouropinion-Reasonable-assuranceis-a-highlevel of assurance; but is notaguarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

fp—

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Updater Services Limited

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities and components included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors shall remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in section
titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
~regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in-extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the separate financial statements of the components included in the standalone
financial statements of the Holding Company whose financial statements reflect total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 297.20 million as at 31 March 2025, total revenue (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 684.13 million and net cash inflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 4.91 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements.

The separate financial statements of the components have been audited by the other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these components, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid components, are based solely on
the reports of such other auditors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Updater Services Limited

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements financial statements, and our report on the Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditors.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries and seven step-down subsidiaries,
whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 2,020.13
million as at 31 March 2025, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 4,087.91 million
and net cash inflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to Rs. 34.22 million for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely
on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The financial information of three step-down subsidiaries, whose financial information reflects total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 42.80 million as at 31 March 2025, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 114.26 million and net cash outflows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs. 38.77 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditors. These
unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by the Board of Directors and our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of
the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial
information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Board
of Directors, these financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial information
certified by the Board of Directors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries
and components as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of such subsidiaries and
components, as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
W those books and the reports of the other auditors, except for the following:
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Updater Services Limited

« in respect of one subsidiary, back-up of the books of account and other relevant books and
papers in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily
basis;

e in respect of one subsidiary, back-up of the books of account and other relevent books and
papers in electronic form of the accounting software for revenue recognition and payroll
records has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

» for the matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. In respect of one subsidiary,
the written representation was not received from one of its director who has submitted his
resignation effective 31 March 2025, which was taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
subsidiary on 28 April 2025.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on the reporting under section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2024.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries and components, as noted
in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2025 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts. Refer Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements in respect of such
items as it relates to the Group.

There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India during
the year ended 31 March 2025.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated

in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and
the other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Updater Services Limited

been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act represented to us and the
other auditors of such subsidiary companies that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our or the other auditors notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India have neither declared
nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, and that performed by respective auditors
of the components and subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
have been audited under the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding
Company, its components and subsidiary companies have used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software:

i) In respect of the Holding Company, the feature of audit trail (edit log) was not enabled (a) at the
database layer of the accounting software for the entire audit period; (b) at the application layer
for certain fields of tables for payroll, procurement, revenue, property, plant and equipment and
financial reporting processes;

ii)In respect of one subsidiary:

a) an ancillary accounting software for revenue recognition does not have the features of
recording the audit trail log

b) an independent auditor's report in relation to controls at a service organization for an
accounting software used for maintaining the books of accounts relating to payroll records, which
is operated by a third-party software service provider is not provided.

Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said payroll and revenue
recognition softwares.

iii) In the case of one subsidiary, an ancillary payroll accounting software operated by a third party
software service provider wherein the reporting on compliance with the audit trail on Systems and
Organization Controls (SOC) Type 2 report is not available. Accordingly, we are unable to
comment whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and operated for the
aforesaid period;
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Updater Services Limited

iv) In respect of two subsidiaries, the feature of audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled in the
accounting software used for maintaining its books of accounts. However, due to the inherent
limitation of the application configuration, we are unable to comment whether the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and whether
there are any instances of the Audit trail feature been tampered during the audit period.
Additionally, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated in previous year, if any,
we are unable to comment whether the audit trail has been preserved by the subsidiaries as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

Further, for the periods where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled for the respective
accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with. Additionally, except where audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled in the
previous year, the audit trail has been preserved by the Group as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’'s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The
remuneration paid to any director by the the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

)~

K Sudhakar

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 214150
Date: 24 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25214150BMODGS3731
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Updater Services Limited for the year ended 31 March

2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their
reports under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Sr. Name of the CIN Holding Clause number
No. entities Company/ of the CARO
Subsidiary | report which is
unfavourable
or qualified or
adverse
1 Updater L74140TN2003PLC051955 Holding vii(a), x(a)
Services Company
Limited
2 Avon U72200TN2002PTC049961 Subsidiary (i)(b), (vii)(a)
Solutions &
Logistics
Private
Limited
3 Fusion Foods | U55100TN2008PTC068154 Subsidiary (vii)(a)
and Catering
Private
Limited
4 Wynwy U74999TN2017PTC119356 Subsidiary (vii)(a)
Technologies
Private
Limited

Place: Chennai

Date: 24 May 2025

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

)

K Sudhakar

Partner

Membership No.: 214150

ICAI UDIN:25214150BMODGS3731
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Updater Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Updater Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company [in
which are included the separate financial statements of erstwhile Stanworth Management Private Limited
('SMPL’) and Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited (‘TSSPL’) for the year ended 31 March 2025,
pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation of SMPL and TSSPL with the Holding Company, approved by
the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT') vide order dated 8 May 2025 with the appointed date of 1
April 2024. The internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of SMPL and TSSPL
(‘components’) for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been audited by another firm of chartered
accountants]and such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies,
as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies and components, as were audited by the
other auditors, the Holding Company, its components and such companies incorporated in India which
are its subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Updater Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies and components in terms of their reports referred to in the "Other
Matter" paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to four subsidiary

reports of such companies and components incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

K Sudhakar

Partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.: 214150
Date: 24 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25214150BMODGS3731
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Updater Services Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 649.71 602.74
Capital work-in-progress 3A 7.57 103.59
Goodwill 3B 1,947.90 1,947.90
Other Intangible assets 3C 489.55 555.36
Intangible assets under development 3E 4.54 5.18
Right-of-use assets 34 485.43 460.29
Contract assets 9 302.06 226.88
Financial assets
(1) Investments 4 79.33 48.10
(i1) Loans 5 - 0.57
(iii) Other financial assets 6 256.43 232.69
Deferred tax assets (net) 31E 531.11 474.46
Non-current tax assets (net) 31A 913.92 773.28
Other non-current assets 7 47.92 54.67
Total Non-current assets 5,715.47 5,485.71
Current assets
Inventories 8 78.71 69.91
Contract assets 9 444.58 490.10
Financial assets
(1) Investments 4 351.44 16.32
(i) Trade receivables 10 6,081.88 5,039.00
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11A 1,184.98 836.16
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11B 1,145.76 671.24
(v) Loans 5 6.51 6.80
(vi) Other financial assets 6 569.39 2,476.49
Other current assets 7 297.27 256.27
Total Current assets 10,160.52 9,862.29
Total Assets 15,875.99 15,348.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 669.53 669.48
Other equity 13 8,912.35 7,731.87
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 9,581.88 8,401.35
Non-controlling interests 14 64.25 59.46
Total Equity 9,646.13 8,460.81
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 . 0.34
(ii) Lease liabilities 34 356.45 325.23
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 131.15 311.63
Provisions 18 731.31 496.85
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 31E 96.08 117.03
Total Non-current liabilities 1,314.99 1,251.08




Updater Services Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 484.34 528.67
(ii) Lease liabilities 34 183.01 192.70
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16 247.29 137.23
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 16 647.72 655.38
enterprises
(iv) Other current financial liabilities 17 2,000.12 2,827.95
Other current liabilities 19 948.36 813.10
Provisions 18 325.57 401.31
Current tax liabilities (net) 31A 78.46 79.77
Total Current Liabilities 4,914.87 5,636.11
Total Liabilities 6,229.86 6,887.19
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 15,875.99 15,348.00
2

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

KSudhakar

Partner

Membership No: 214150
Place: Chennai

Date: May 24, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Updater Services Limited

CIN: L74140TN2003PLC051955

-

Raghtnandana Tangirala

Managing Director
DIN: 00628914
Place: Chennai
Date: May 24, 2025

Radha Ramanujan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: May 24, 2025

o

Amitabh Jaipuria
Director

DIN: 01864871
Place: Chennai
Date: May 24, 2025

Qe

Samdhya Saravanan
Company Secretary
Membership No: 66942
Place: Chennai

Date: May 24, 2025




Updater Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, . unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 27,360.63 24,443.63
Other income 21 356.67 236.10
Total Income 27,717.30 24,679.73
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 22 920.29 974.94
Purchase of traded goods 23 38.70 44.30
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and Stock-in-trade 24 (47.88) 0.38
Employee benefits expenses 25 20,402.69 18,156.51
Finance costs 26 103.48 192.83
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 471.34 539.60
Impairment losses 28 131.42 69.61
Fair value change in liabilities payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries 29 - 105.92
Other expenses 30 4,249.97 3,749.81
Total Expenses 26,270.01 23,833.90
Profit before tax 1,447.29 845.83
Tax expense: 31
Current tax 335.28 213.50
Deferred tax (77.76) (30.31)
Total Tax expense 257.52 183.19
Profit for the year 1,189.77 662.64
Other Comprehensive income ('OCI'):
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit obligations (net) 5.07 10.45
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 31C (3.85) (3.72)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 13 22.22 (7.13)
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 31C - =
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 23.44 (0.40)
1,213.21 662.24

Total comprehensive income for the year




Updater Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,188.00
Non-controlling interests 1.77

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 23.73
Non-controlling interests (0.29)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1,211.73

Non-controlling interests 1.48

Earnings per equity share (in INR)

Basic 32 17.74
Diluted : 32 17.70
Material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

679.46
(16.82)

0.37
(0.77)

679.83
(17.59)

11.36
11.30

As per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Updater Services Limited
Fjrm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022 CIN: L74140TN2003PLC051955
Al
S

Sudhakar Ra andana Tangirala
Pdrtner Managing Director
Membership No: 214150 DIN: 00628914
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai >

Date: May 24, 2025 Date: May 24, 2025

Radha\Ramanujan
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chennai
Date: May 24, 2025

Amitabh Jaipuria
Director

DIN: 01864871
Place: Chennai
Date: May 24, 2025

e

S ya Saravana
Company Secretary
Membership No: 66942
Place: Chennai

Date: May 24, 2025




Updater Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,447.29 845.83
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 471.34 539.60
Finance cost 103.48 192.83
Interest income (177.40) (119.15)
Fair value change in liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiary (net) (43.87) 74.59
Impairment losses 131.42 69.61
Bad debts written off 8.59 12.34
Liabilities / Provisions no longer required written back* (53.90) (52.91)
(Profit) Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) 3.05 (4.80)
Fair value gain on financial Assets at Fair value through profit and loss (62.93) -
Intangible asset under development written off - 0.29
Employee stock option expenses 28.80 100.60
Unrealised exchange differences (net) - 0.76
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,855.87 1,659.59
Movements in working capital :
(Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables and contracts assets (1,201.98) (618.96)
(Increase)/decrease in loans, financial and other assets (79.12) (61.65)
(Increase)/decrease in Inventory (8.80) (0.05)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions, trade payables, financial and other liabilities 410.66 462.47
Cash generated from operations 976.63 1,441.41
Income taxes paid, net (468.27) (415.02)
Net cash flow from operating activities 508.36 1,026.39
Cash flow from investing activities
Purc.hase of propc.erty, plant and equipment including capital work in progress, capital (135.32) (385.50)
creditors and capital advances
(Purchase) /Sale proceeds of Investments (303.42) (26.32)
Investments / (Maturity) of fixed deposits (net) 1,445.80 (2,503.72)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.66 20.96
Settlement to erstwhile promoters of acquired subsidiaries, (net) (968.71) (763.40)
Interest received 143.53 93.84
Net cash flow used in investing activities 185.54 (3,564.14)




Updater Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31,2025
(4l amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise Stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares 3 6,400.00
Payment to selling shareholders - (2,400.00)
Payment towards IPO related expenses % (181.52)
Proceeds from exercise of employee shares options 2.16 32.46
Proceeds of long-term borrowings - -

Repayment of long-term borrowings (0.34) (256.08)
Proceeds from short-term-borrowings 5,335.41 10,239.62
Repayment of short-term-borrowings (5,379.74) (11,211.22)
Payment of principal portion towards lease liabilities (199.09) (162.13)
Payment of interest towards lease liabilities (57.84) (50.87)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (32.80)
Repayment of finance cost (45.64) (150.22)
Net cash flow from financing activities C (345.08) 2,227.24
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents A+B+C 348.82 (310.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 836.16 1,146.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,184.98 836.16

Refer Note 15.6 for change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
hartered Accountants Updater Services Limited

irm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: L74140TN2003PLC051955 7

Sudhakar Amitabh Jaipuria
Partner Marraging Director Director

Membership No: 214150 DIN: 00628914 DIN: 01864871
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai o Place: Chennai

Date: May 24, 2025 Date: May 24, 2025 Date: May 24, 2025
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ha Ramanujan Sa a Saravanan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 66942

Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: May 24, 2025 Date: May 24, 2025




Updater Services Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid Number of Amount
shares
Balance as on April 1, 2024 6,69,48,366 669.48
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year 4,875 0.05
Balance as at March 31, 2025 6,69,53,241 669.53
Balance as on April 1, 2023 5,29,52,467 529.52
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year 1,39,95,899 139.96
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,69,48,366 669.48
(b) Other equity Reserves and surplus OCI
Particulars Retained Capital General Securities Employee Exchange Total Equity Non- Total
Earnings redemption reserve premium Stock differences attributable controlling
reserve Options on to equity Interests
Reserve translation of shareholders ('NCI")
foreign of parent
operations
As at April 1, 2024 3,247.44 22.16 19.38 4,349.28 79.18 14.43 7,731.87 59.46 7,791.32
Profit for the year 1,188.00 - - - - - 1,188.00 1.77 1,189.77
Other comprehensive Income 151 - - - 22.22 23.73 (0.29) 23.44
Total comprehensive Income 1,189.51 - - - - 22.22 1,211.73 1.48 1,213.21
Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and distributions
Employee stock options provided (refer Note 35) - - - - 22.24 - 22.24 - 22.24
Shares issued against ESOP reserve - - - 32.63 (32.63) - - 331 3.31
Exercise of share options * - - - 1.80 (0.40) - 1.40 - 1.40
Buy-back of equity shares (refer Note 13) 53.58 0.48 (0.48) (70.89) - - (17.31) - (17.31)
Income tax on buy-back of equity shares (37.58) = = - 5 - (37.58) - (37.58)
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve (0.71) 0.71 - - = = - & =
As at March 31, 2025 4,452.24 23.35 18.90 4,312.82 68.39 36.65 8,912.35 64.25 8,976.59
As at April 1, 2023 2,554.32 21.09 26.60 601.95 53.89 21.56 3,279.41 69.18 3,348.59
Profit for the year 679.46 - - - - - 679.46 (16.82) 662.64
Other comprehensive income for the year 7.50 - = = = (7.13) 0.37 0.77) (0.40)
Total comprehensive income for the year 686.96 - - - - (7.13) 679.83 (17.59) 662.24
IPO expenses adjusted against securities premium (refer - - - (181.52) - - (181.52) - (181.52)
Note 48)
Premium on issue of shares for consideration other than - - - 3.866.67 - - 3,866.67 - 3,866.67
cash
Employee stock options provided (refer Note 26) - = - = 100.60 - 100.60 - 100.60
Exercise of share options * - - - 62.1% (73.31) = (13.13) 40.67 27.54
Dividend payment to NCI - - - - - - - (32.80) (32.80)
Buy-back of equity shares (refer Note 13) 6.15 1.07 (7.22) = - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 3,247.44 22.16 19.38 4,349.28 79.18 14.43 7,731.87 59.4% 7,791.32

* Certain subsidiaries have granted the Employee stock option (ESOP) to their employees. Accordingly, such ESOP reserve have been grouped under NCL

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

for BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fiffn's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022
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Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

1. Corporate information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial statements of Updater Services Limited (formerly known as
Updater Services Private Limited) (‘the Company’, ‘UDS’, ‘Holding Company’, “Parent”, and “Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the ‘Group’) for the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company is domiciled and incorporated as
a public limited company in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with its equity shares are listed on
National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange in India. The Company’s registered office is at First floor, 42,
Gandhi Mandapam Road, Kotturpuram, Chennai 600 085. The Group is engaged in providing facility management services
like integrated facility management services to various industries such as information technology enabled services,
manufacturing, hospitality and other industries and catering services, which includes industrial catering, and services at
food courts.

Facility management services includes housekeeping, janitorial, garden management, pest control, waste management,
vendor management, cleaning and mail room services, mechanical and electrical services, water management, hygiene
management, plumbing, energy/safety audit, design erection, installation, testing and commissioning and catering
solutions. Business Support services include Mailroom management Services, Employee background verification Services,
Retail/Channel/ Trade Audits & Assurance Services, Sales Enablement Services and Airports Ground Handling Services.
Information on the Group’s structure is provided in Note 43 Group information. Information on other related party
relationships of the Group is provided in Note 39 Related party transactions.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors
on May 24, 2025.

Details of the Group’s material accounting policies are included in Note 2.2 to the consolidated financial statements.
2.1 Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act and presentation requirements of
Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

B. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except
for the following:

a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies;
b) Net defined benefit (plan asset)/ liability measured at fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit

obligation.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

C. Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Holding Company’s
functional currency. For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. All values are rounded to nearest millions except
when otherwise stated.

D. Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

e Note 35 — Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as Lessee
e Note 41 - Fair value measurement of financial instruments

b) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is included in the

following notes:

e Notes 2.2(g) and 20: revenue recognition:

e Note 2.2(1) and Note 34: measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

e Note 2.2(i) and Note 32: recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised;

»  Note 2.2(e): impairment test of intangible assets and goodwill: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts

e Notes 18: recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and
magnitude of an outflow of resources;

e Note 41 — Impairment of financial assets

e Note 36 - determination of fair value of employee stock option

E. Measurement of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of
fair values. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. The Group measures
financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. The principle or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole:

 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Group. At each reporting date, the Group analyses the
movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting
policies. For this analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. Other fair value related disclosures are given in

the relevant notes.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. Also

refer Note 41.

F. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated
as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Ttis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
o Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

2.2 Material accounting policies

a. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as at
March 31, 2024. Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

»  power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee)
e exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
+ the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

» the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements

e the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

¢ the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other

voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the

Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of
the parent company, i.e., year ended March 31,2024. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from
that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same
date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary,
unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

(a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(c) Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intra-group losses may indicate an impairment that
requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.
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Non-Controlling Interests (‘NCI”) are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the NCI, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

e Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

°  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

*  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings,

as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

b. Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities. The Group has an option to apply a
‘concentration test’ that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The optional concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date
fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is not probable.

However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are

recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

»  Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date
or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

+  Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based
payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition date.

e Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

e Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related
contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date
fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews
the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in
OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

c. Foreign currencies

For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate
if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:

e Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual
financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreign
operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary),
such exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

e  Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

e Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit
or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of
the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average
rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for
consolidation are recognised in OCI except to the extent that the exchange differences are allocated to NCI. When a
foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost,
the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal. If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reallocated to NCI. When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint
venture while retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the date of
transition to Ind AS (April 1, 2017), are treated as assets and liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional
currency of the parent and no further translation differences occur.

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date
of transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.
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d. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date is disclosed under capital work-in-
progress.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment and depreciated separately based on their specific
useful lives.

All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure,
are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred when recognition
criteria are not met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of
property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of April
1, 2017 (the transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

Depreciation

The Group, based on technical assessment made by experts and management estimates, depreciates certain items of
property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013 based on the pattern of consumption of such assets and having regard to the nature of assets
in this industry. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis that closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the respective assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Asset Classification Estimated Useful Life (Years) Schedule II Life (years)
Plant and machinery ‘ 5to 15 15
Furniture and fittings 10 10
Office equipment 5 5
Vehicles 8 8
Computer and accessories 3 5
Building 60 30
Leasehold improvements # 1-5 years NA

# Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the leasehold period or useful life estimated by management whichever is

lesser.
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The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment vare reviewed at each

financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Depreciation on additions/(disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (upto) the date on which asset is ready for

use/ (disposed off).

The Holding Company has charged depreciation on property, plant & equipment (PPE) based on Written Down Value
(“WDV?”) method upto December 31, 2023. With effect from January 1, 2024, the Holding Company has changed its
method of depreciation from WDV to Straight Line Method (“SLM”) based upon the technical assessment of expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets.

e. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit
or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised as part
of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other expenditure, including expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of intangible assets recognised as of April 1,2017 (the transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss. when the asset is derecognised.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

Asset Classification Useful Life (Years) Amortisation method Internally generated
or acquired

Software 3 to 10 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Goodwill Indefinite Assessed for impairment at the end | Acquired
of every year

Customer Relationship | 5—8.5 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Non-compete 8 — 10 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Vendor Contract 5 years Amortised on a straight-line basis | Acquired
over the life

Brand Indefinite Assessed for impairment at the end | Acquired
of every year

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

f. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset (other than inventories,
contract assets and deferred tax assets) may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value
less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth
rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the services, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market
in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After
impairment, depreciation / amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful

life.

An assessment for assets excluding goodwill is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation / amortization,
had'no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.
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g. Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue primarily from Integrated Facility Management services (‘IFM’) and Business Support
Services(‘BSS’). Revenues from contracts with customers are considered for recognition and measurement when the
contract has been approved by the parties to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform their respective
obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services (“performance obligations™)
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the Transaction price of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks. Revenue is recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

The contract with customers for IFM services and BSS, generally contains a single performance obligation. The Holding
Company’s contracts may include variable consideration including discounts and penalties which are reduced from
revenues and recognised based on an estimate of the expected pay out relating to these considerations (expected price
concessions). Revenue is adjusted for expected price concessions based on the management estimates.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Holding Company or Group on its own account. Rather, it is the tax
collected on value added on the services and commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is
excluded from revenue.

If contractual unconditional right to consideration is dependent on completion of contractual obligations including right to
receive the reimbursement of gratuity cost from the customers, then such assets are classified as contract assets.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Income from facility management services

Revenues from facility management service contracts are recognised over a period of time in accordance with the
requirements of Ind-AS 115, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” as and when the Company satisfies performance
obligations by rendering the promised services to its customers, and are net of discounts.

Income from Mailroom services / Courier services

Mailroom services consist of in-house operations of mail room and mail delivery including inter-office mails. It involves
MIS generation, cost management, vendor management, inbound and outbound mail management and pre-processing of
mails. Revenue from mailroom services is accounted over time as and when the related services are rendered and is net of
discounts
and taxes.

Mail logistics / Courier services and pickup & delivery services refer to packing and delivery of goods' articles. Revenue
from such services is recognized at a point in time upon delivery of courier package as the related services are rendered in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the contract/agreement with the customer.

Sales Enablement and other staffing services
Revenues from knowledge process outsourcing, human resource outsourcing service contracts are recognised over time
and accounted on accrual basis on performance of the services agreed in the contract with the customers.
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Audit & Assurance and Employee Background Verification Services

The Groups revenue comprises of Audit and Assurance (A&A) and Employee Background Verification (EBGV) services
for customers in India and outside India. Agreements with customers are either on a fixed price — fixed time frame or on a
time- and - material basis. Revenue on time-and-material basis contracts is recognised as the related services are performed
and revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue. Revenue from time
bound fixed price contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as
to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the proportionate completion method to the extent
of cost incurred. When there is uncertainty as to the measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is
postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services

Revenues from Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services comprises of time/unit price and fixed fees-based service
contracts. Revenue from time/unit price-based contract is recognised over time as services are rendered and is billed in
accordance with the contractual terms specified in the customer contracts. Revenue from fixed fees-based service contracts
is recognised on achievement of performance milestones specified in customer contracts.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Upon completion of the service period and
acceptance by the customer (generally by confirming the attendance records), the amount recognised as contract assets is
reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in
section “Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement”. Refer section (i)

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time

is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

h. Recognition of dividend income and interest income
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the unconditional right to receive dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset
(when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have
become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis.
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i. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present

location and condition are accounted for as follows:

e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

e  Stock-in-trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-Item
basis.

j- Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) are recognised initially at fair
value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method (EIR) is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. In
calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when
the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts
to the gross basis.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e Financial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10 (Trade Receivables).

Financial asset at FVTOCI
A ‘financial asset ’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Group does not have any debt
instrument at FVTOCI.

Financial asset at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for

categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Group has not designated any financial instrument
as at FVTPL.

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Contingent consideration classified as financial liability recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. The Group does not have any debt instrument at

FVTPL.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, entities in the Group has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. Such election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the ‘amounts from OCI to P&L, 'even on sale of investment. '
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
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Financial assets — Business model assessment
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information

considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include whether
management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or 15ealizing
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and

how those risks are managed,

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations
about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include
reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or
premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is
insignificant at initial recognition.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss
(ECL). The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
based on a provision matrix under simplified approach. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
days the receivables are due.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Provision for
ECL is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income. It
is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on financial assets on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Group reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expenses in the statement of
profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘Impairment losses on financial instrument and contract
assets’ in the P&L. '

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either
begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies
the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in business model.
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortized cost, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, redemption
liability and financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement
All financial liabilities except derivatives are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate

method or at Fair Value through profit and loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss.

Liability towards unacquired shares of subsidiary:

The Group has not recognised a non-controlling interest in subsidiaries where the Group has a right / obligation to purchase
the shares held by NCI. The Group has formulated its accounting policy based on Ind AS 32, and consequently, any
contractual obligation to purchase NCI, such as an NCI put, gives rise to a financial liability measured at the present value
of the redemption amount which is subsequently measured in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is not a financial
asset and certain criteria are met. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a
non-financial item in accordance with the Group’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost.
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Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

e Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment

e (Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in
an unrecognised firm commitment

°  Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements (including the
analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined). A hedging relationship qualifies for
hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

o There is an economic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.
o The effect of credit risk does not ‘dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

o The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of
hedged item.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs. The
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the
hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through
profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to
the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value
of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the Effective portion of cash
flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Effective
portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the
cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Group uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast transactions and
firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The
ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating
to commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses.
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The Group designates only the spot element of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. The forward element is
recognised in OCI.

The amounts accumulated in OCI are accounted for, depending on the nature of the underlying hedged transaction. If the
hedged transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount accumulated in equity is
removed from the separate component of equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged
asset or liability. This is not a reclassification adjustment and will not be recognised in OCI for the period. This also applies
where the hedged forecast transaction of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability subsequently becomes a firm
commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied.

For any other cash flow hedges, the amount accumulated in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as reclassification
adjustment in the same period or periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss.

If cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCI must remain in accumulated
OCI if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to occur. Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to
profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. After discontinuation, once the hedged cash flow occurs, any amount
remaining in accumulated OCI must be accounted for depending on the nature of the underlying transaction as described
above.

Hedges of a net investment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, including a hedge of a monetary item that is accounted for as part of the
net investment, are accounted for in a way similar to cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating
to the effective portion of the hedge are recognised as OCI while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains
or losses recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss (as a reclassification adjustment).

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of
the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

k. Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of

low-value assets.
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i. Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Asset Classification Estimated Useful Life
(Years)

Building 1-7

Vehicles 1-3

Furniture and fittings 1-2

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (f) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. (Refer Note 41)

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Buildings and Machinery and
Equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that
are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

I. Retirement and other employee benefits
a. Short-term employment benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months

after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are

settled.
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b. Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as non-current employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such non-current compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

¢. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of
the reporting date, then they are discounted. The liabilities are presented as provision for employee benefits in the balance

sheet.

d. Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
i. Gratuity obligations

Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The Plan provides payment to
vested employees at retirement, death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. The Group provides the gratuity benefit through annual contribution to a fund
managed by the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Under this scheme the settlement obligation remains with the
Group although the LIC administers the scheme and determines the contribution premium required to be paid by the Group.
The cost of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the
projected unit credit method.

In addition to the above, the Group recognises its liability in respect of gratuity for employees (where customer reimburses
gratuity) and its right of reimbursement as an asset. Employee benefits expense in respect of gratuity to employees and
reimbursement right is presented in accordance with Ind AS — 19.

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date
that the Group recognises related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs and

- Net interest expense or income.
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ii. Retirement benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

m. Taxes

Current tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax charge or credit during the year. Current income tax

assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in
the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. The Group has determined that interest and penalties
related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore
accounted for them under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

The Group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or
expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and
it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future and at the time of the transaction, it does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit and at the time of the transaction, it does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. In
respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets shall be
recognised to the extent that, and only to the extent that, it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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Deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be

utilised.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In
the year in which the Group recognizes MAT credit as a deferred tax asset. The Group reviews the “MAT credit
entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

n. Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed or is deducted in the
related expense. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful
life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e.
by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as
per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

0. Segment reporting

Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM”) decides about
resource allocation and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. The Managing Director of the Group
has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), he evaluates the Group's performance, allocate
resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Group into two segments viz. ‘Integrated
Facility Management Services” and ‘Business Support Services’.

p. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of parent company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

q. Dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised, and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when
it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

r. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle present obligation at the
end of reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainty surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of these
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of receivable can be measured reliably.

s. Onerous contract

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Group recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because it
has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract (i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related

to contract activities).




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated

t. Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liability is disclosed for,

(i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Group or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not

recognised in the financial statements.

Contingent asset is not recognised in consolidated financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and is recognized. Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with banks and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above. Bank overdrafts are shown under the head “Borrowings” in financial liabilities in the Valance Sheet.

v. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

w. Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model. Further details are given in Note 36.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of
the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the
date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty,
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. The dilutive effect of
outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share

x. Share capital
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of equity shares are recognised as a deduction from equity. Income tax
relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 12.

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4  Investments
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(j))

A Non-current investments
Investments in equity instruments measured at cost
Unquoted

9,999 (March 31, 2024: 9,999) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Updater Services (UDS) Foundation 0.10 0.10
(Also refer Note 39)

Investments at Fair value through profit or loss

Unquoted

Investments in Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

784 (March 31, 2024: Nil) Class A4 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each of Aubotz Labs

Private Limited * 79.22 30.00

Investments in equity instruments
1,000 (March 31, 2024: 1,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up in Bird Airport Services (Chennai) 0.01 18.00
Private Limited

79.33 48.10
B Current investments

Investments in mutual fund at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Quoted
HSBC Liquid Fund - Direct Growth (Formerly known as HSBC Cash Fund - Growth Direct Plan) 50.08 -
Bajaj Finserv Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - LFDG 50.08 -
Bandhan Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 50.07 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct 50.71 "
Invesco India Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Plan 50.03 -
Tata Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 50.09 -
HSBC Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth (Formerly known as L& T Low Duration Fund Direct Plan - Grow - 11.90
Franklin India Liquid Fund -Super Institutional Plan - Direct Plan Growth 50.38 =
Baroda BNP Paribas Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Plan Growth = 4.42

351.44 16.32
Non-current investments 79.33 48.10
Current investments 351.44 16.32
Total 430.77 64.42
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 351.44 16.32
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 351.44 16.32
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 79.33 48.10

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments w =

* During the year ended March 31, 2023, one of the subsidiaries, Integrated Technical Staffing and Solutions Private Limited ('ITSS'") had invested in 300,000
Cumulative Convertible Debentures ('CCD') of INR 100 each in Aubotz Labs Private Limited ('Aubotz') amounting to INR 30 million, with a lock-in period of 2
years, during which interest shall not be paid. As per the terms of the agreement, if Aubotz meets its target as specified in the investment agreement, equity shares
will be subscribed at a discount of 25% at the time of issuance of shares.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the aforesaid 300,000 CCD's were converted into 784 Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (‘'CCPS') with a face
value of INR 10 per share. As at March 31, 2025, the fair value of the investment is INR 79.22 million and the fair value gain recognised in the Statement of profit
and loss is INR 49.23 million for the year ended March 31, 2025. Also, refer Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of quoted investments in mutual funds

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Units Amount Units Amount

HSBC Liquid Fund - Direct Growth (Formerly known as HSBC 19,378.93 50.08
Cash Fund - Growth Direct Plan ‘ - .
Bajaj Finserv Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - LFDG 44,232.91 50.08
Bandhan Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 15,985.34 50.07 - -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct 1,21,095.48 50.71 - -
Invesco India Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Plan 17,719.57 50.03 - -
Tata Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 34,29,395.51 50.09 - =
Franklin India Liquid Fund -Super Institutional Plan - Direct Plan 12,928.46 5038 K i
Growth
HSBC Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth - - 6,648.12 11.90
Baroda BNP Paribas Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Plan - - 3,101.84 4.42
Growth 2 cRV/A

b \'6\

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 41.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Loans
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(j))

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Loans to employees
- unsecured and considered good - 0.57 6.51 6.80
- credit impaired - - 2.72 4.71
- 0.57 9.23 11.51
Less: Loss allowance - - (2.72) (4.71)
- 0.57 6.51 6.80
Note: The Group has not given any loans or advances to directors or key management personnel.
Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 41.
Other financial assets Non-current Current
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(j)) As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated

Security deposits

- considered good 116.62 119.10 63.00 47.79
- credit impaired 20.27 7.98 0.25 5.14
136.89 127.08 63.25 52.93
Less: Loss allowance (21.83) (7.98) (0.25) (5.14)
115.06 119.10 63.00 47.79
Rental deposits
- considered good 28.94 32.66 11.13 35.60
- credit impaired 5.94 5.23 - B
34.88 37.89 11.13 35.60
Less: Loss allowance (5.94) (5.23) - -
28.94 32.66 11.13 35.60
Retention deposits
- considered good 0.10 0.10 - -
- credit impaired - 0.53 - -
0.10 0.63 - -
Less: Loss allowance - (0.53) - -
0.10 0.10 - -
Advances recoverable in cash
- considered good 1.17 0.01 - 0.01
- credit impaired - - 0.67 0.53
1.17 0.01 0.67 0.54
Less: Loss allowance - - (0.67) (0.53)
1.17 0.01 - 0.01
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Margin money deposits with banks * 35.67 28.47 9.92 76.49
- in long term deposits with maturity more than 12 months 75.49 52.35 432.00 2,316.09
111.16 80.82 441.92 2,392.58
Interest accrued and not due on bank deposits - - 15.54 -
Other receivables - - 37.80 0.51
256.43 232.69 569.39 2,476.49

* Fixed deposits are under lien with various banks with respect to guarantees issued to third parties.

(i) Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 41.

ii) Fixed deposits under lien with various banks in respect of guarantees issued to third parties include INR 45.59 million as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024

INR 104.96 million).

iii) The balance of bank deposits mentioned above includes an amount of INR Nil as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR 2,236.83 million) held with various

banks representing unutilised IPO proceeds. Also refer Note 48.

iv) Refer Note 39 for balances outstanding with related parties.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

<this space has been intentionally left blank>

7 Other assets ' Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance with government authorities
- considered good 22.65 13.21 121.56 60.12
- credit impaired 4.98 - - -
27.63 13.21 121.56 60.12
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (4.98) - - -
22.65 13.21 121.56 60.12
Capital advance
- considered good 16.73 32.18 - g
- credit impaired - 0.06 - -
16.73 3224 - -
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - (0.06) - -
16.73 32.18 - -
Advances to suppliers
- considered good - - 16.89 91.55
- credit impaired - - 0.86 -
- - 17.75 91.55
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - (0.86) -
- - 16.89 91.55
Advance to employees
- considered good - - 15.69 14.49
- credit impaired - - 10.67 6.21
- - 26.36 20.70
Less: Provision for doubtful advances - - (10.67) (6.21)
- - 15.69 14.49
Prepaid expenses 325 7.71 133.38 88.26
Other advances 5.29 1.57 9.5 1.85
47.92 54.67 297.27 256.27
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(i))
Raw materials 13.53 15.22
Stock-in-trade 62.16 37.20
Finished goods - 10.08
Consumables 3.02 7.41
78.71 69.91




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

10

Contract assets
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(g) and Note 2.2(j))

Reimbursement right of gratuity
Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Unbilled revenue *

Non-current Current

As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
302.06 226.88 303.81 278.09

z - (66.31) (45.20)

302.06 226.88 237.50 232.89

- - 207.08 257.21

- - 207.08 257.21

302.06 226.88 444.58 490.10

* Classified as contract assets as there is no unconditional right to consideration and it is dependent on completion of contractual obligations. These are considered
good. The Group has recognised gratuity liability and reimbursement right in respect of employees where there is contractual right to receive reimbursement from
customers, pursuant to paragraph 116 of Ind AS - 19. Also refer Note 33.

Movement of Contract assets

Opening balance

Add: Addition during the year

Less: Billed during the year

Less: Provision for expected credit loss
Closing balance

Trade Receivables
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(j))

A. Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - secured

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Trade receivable from related parties

Total Trade receivables

Less: Loss allowance

Net Trade Receivables (A)

B. Unbilled Trade receivables
Unbilled Trade receivables # considered good

Total Unbilled Trade receivables (B)

Less: Loss allowance
Total Trade receivables (A + B)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
716.98 912.69
359.71 278.29
(308.94) (451.76)
(21.11) (22.24)
746.64 716.98
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

#Classified as unbilled Trade receivables as the right to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time. These are considered good.

Movement in loss allowance of Trade receivables

Opening balance

Provision / (reversal) of impairment loss on financial assets (refer Note 29 and 37)

Closing balance
Movement of Unbilled Trade receivables

Opening balance

Add: Addition during the year
Less: Billed during the year
Closing balance

Notes:

4,976.48 4,018.87
2.04 1.09
176.32 144.95
5,154.84 4,164.91
(264.03) (144.95)
4,890.81 4,019.96
1,198.14 1,019.04
1,198.14 1,019.04
(7.07) -
6,081.88 5,039.00
144.95 126.91
119.08 18.04
264.03 144.95
1,019.04 917.40
1,198.14 1,019.04
(1019.04) (917.40)
1,198.14 1,019.04

(i) No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days based on the type of the customer. For balances, terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer

Note 39.

(ii) Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 41.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

10

Trade receivables (continued)

(iii) Trade Receivable ageing as on March 31, 2025

11A

11B

Particulars Unbilled Current Lessthan6 6 months- 1-2years 2-3years More Total
but not months 1 year than 3
due years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 1,783.01  2,042.03 1,930.04 280.58 89.62 39.50 8.54 6,173.32
(i1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 2.08 - 13.81 7.53 48.82 24.42 29.52 126.18
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 1.18 4.66 12.30 14.54 2.64 18.16 53.48
1,785.09  2,043.21 1,948.51 300.41 152.98 66.56  56.22 . 6,352.98
Trade Receivable ageing as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Unbilled Current Less than 6 6 months- 1-2years 2-3years More Total
but not months 1 year than 3
due years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 1.537.72 2,213.51 1,028.08 131.79 112.08 19.07 8.27 5,050.52
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 9.56 3.44 5.73 13.87 16.84 20.87 1279 83.08
(iil) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - & & = % -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - 17.35 2.74 3.08 27.18 50.35
1,547.28  2,216.95 1,033.81 163.01 131.66 43.02 48.22 5,183.95
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(u))
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 609.79 222.42
- deposits with original maturity of less than three months 574.57 613.18
Cash on hand 0.62 0.56
1,184.98 836.16
Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and market risk are disclosed in Note 41.
Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits (with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months) (refer note (iv) below) 1,077.68 483.19
Earmarked balances with banks and balances held with banks to extent held as margin money (refer note(i) to (iii)
68.08 188.05
below)
Total Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,145.76 671.24

Notes:

(i) Fixed deposits under lien with various banks in respect of guarantees issued to third parties of INR 27.37 million (March 31, 2024: INR 17.35 million).

(ii) Balance includes an amount of INR 28.32 million as at March 31, 2025, (March 31, 2024: INR 170.63 million) held with ICICI Bank (Monitoring Agency
account and IPO Public issue account) as the IPO Public Issue Account.

iii) Earmarked balances representing advances received from Government for a specified project of INR 0.04 million as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR
0.07 million). Such advances received are utilised only for the said project.

(iv) The balance of bank deposits (including interest accrued) mentioned above includes an amount of INR Nil as at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: 10.10
million) held with various banks representing unutilised IPO proceeds.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

12 Equity share capital

Authorised
75,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 75,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each 750.00 750.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
66,953,241 (March 31, 2024: 66,948,466) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 669.53 669.48

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 6,69,48,366 669.48 5,29,52,467 529.52
Add: Shares issued during the year 4,875 0.05 1,39,95,899 139.96
Qutstanding at the end of the year 6,69,53,241 669.53 6,69,48,366 669.48

(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Holding Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights
cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. The Holding Company declares dividend in Indian

Rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company or its subsidiaries, equity share holders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company or
its subsidiaries, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

(i) During the year ended March 31, 2023, 134,988 equity shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash.

(i1) The Holding Company has not issued any bonus shares.
(iii) The Holding Company has not bought-back any equity shares.

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of shares

% of holding

No. of shares

% of holding

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid

Mr.Raghunandana Tangirala 1,60,13,579 23.92% 1,58,49,179 23.67%
Ms.Shanthi Tangirala 1,33,93,680 20.00% 1,62,:37,705 24.25%
Tangi Facility Solutions Private Limited 71,73,440 10.71% 71,73,440 10.71%

As per records of the Holding company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options:
For details of shares reserved for issue under the Share based payment plan of the Group, please refer Note 35.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

12 Equity share capital (continued)

(f) Promoter's shareholding details:

Particulars No. of shares at |Change during the| No. of shares at % of Total % change

the beginning of year the end of the year Shares during the year
the year

As at March 31, 2025

Mr.Raghunandana Tangirala 1,58,49,179 1,64,400 1,60,13,579 23.92% 0.25%

Ms.Shanthi Tangirala (also refer (h) below) 1,62,37,705 (28,44,025) 1,33,93,680 20.00% (4.25%)

Mr.Anjan Sarma (also refer (h) below) - 23,44,025 23,44,025 3.50% 3.50%

Ms. Jigyasa Sharma (also refer (h) below) - 5,00,000 5,00,000 0.75% 0.75%

Tangi Facility Solutions Private Limited 71,73,440 - 71,73,440 10.71% 0.00%

As at March 31, 2024

Mr.Raghunandana Tangirala 1,55,87,702 2,61,477 1,58,49,179 23.67% (5.77%)

Ms.Shanthi Tangirala 1,62,37,705 - 1,62,37,705 24.25% (6.41%)

Tangi Facility Solutions Private Limited 1,11,73,440 (40,00,000) 71,73,440 10.71% (10.39%)

(g) The Company has completed an Initial Public Offer (IPO") on October 4, 2023 by way of fresh issue of 13,333,333 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each
and an offer for sale of 8,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each of the Company at an issue price of INR 300 per equity share aggregating to INR
6,400 million (comprising fresh issue of equity shares of INR 4,000 million and INR 2,400 million payable to selling shareholders towards offer for sale). The
Company allotted 13,333,333 fresh equity shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 290 per equity share on September 30, 2023. The total share premium
arising on IPO amounting to INR 3,866.67 million has been accounted under securities premium reserve and the IPO related expenses amounting to INR 181.52
million, being Company's share of total estimated IPO expense has been adjusted against the premium amount as disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. Also refer note 48.

(h) During the year ended March 31, 2025, Ms.Shanthi Tangirala gifted 2,844,025 shares to her immediate relatives. The total promoter and promoter group
holding remains unchanged.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

13  Other equity As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Securities premium 4,312.82 4,349.28
Capital redemption reserve 23.35 22.16
Foreign currency translation reserve 36.65 14.43
Share options outstanding account 68.39 79.18
General reserve 18.90 19.38
Retained earnings 4,452.24 3,247.44
Total Other equity 8,912.35 7,731.87

(a) Securities premium

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening balance 4,349.28 601.95
Premium on issue of shares 32.63 3,866.67
IPO expense adjusted against securities premium (refer Note 48) - (181.52)
Exercise of stock options 1.80 62.18
Buy-back of equity shares (70.89) -
Closing balance 4,312.82 4,349.28
(b) Capital Redemption Reserve March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 22.16 21.09
Changes during the year 0.48 1.07
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve 0.71

Closing balance 23.35 22.16
(c) Foreign currency translation reserve March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 14.43 21.56
Changes during the year 22.22 (7.13)
Closing balance 36.65 14.43
(d) Share options outstanding account March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 79.18 53.89
Add: Employee stock options provided 22.24 100.60
Less: Exercise of stock options (0.40) (75.31)
Premium on issue of shares (32.63)

Closing balance 68.39 79.18
(e) General reserve March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 19.38 26.60
Less: Buyback of shares (0.48) (7.22)
Closing balance 18.90 19.38
(f) Retained earnings March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 3,247.43 2,554.32
Add: Profit for the year 1,188.00 679.46
Add: Other comprehensive gain / (loss) 151 750
Buy-back of equity shares (refer Note 40) 53.58 7.22
Tax on buy-back (37.57) -
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve (0.71) (1.07)
Closing balance 4,452.24 3,247.43




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

13  Other equity (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a) Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act,
2013.

(b) Capital Redemption Reserve

The Group has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount in Capital Redemption Reserve
is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought back. The Company can utilise in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

(¢) Foreign currency translation reserve
Exchange differences in translating financial statements of foreign operations are the foreign currency translation differences.

(d) Share options outstanding account
The Group has established various equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Group. See Note 35 for further details

on these plans.

(e) General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a
transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

(f) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents profits generated and retained by the Company post distribution of dividends to the equity shareholders in the respective years.
This reserve can be utilized for distribution of dividend by the Company considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
14 Non-controlling interests 64.25 59.46
As at As at
f NCI
Movement or NG March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 59.46 69.18
Total comprehensive income for the year 1.48 (17.59)
Dividend payment to NCI - (32.80)
Shares issued against ESOP reserve 3.31 -
Exercise of share options - 40.67
Closing balance 64.25 59.46
Non-current Current
15 Borrowings As at As at As at As at
orrowing March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Secured loans (at amortised cost)

Cash credit from banks (secured) (refer Note 15.1) - - 5.03 26.31
Working capital loan (secured) (refer Note 15.2) - 0.34 479.31 502.36
- 0.34 484.34 528.67

Notes:

15.1 The Holding Company has taken cash credit having interest rate ranging from 8.10% to 11.60% p.a. (March 31, 2024: 6.00% to 11.25% p.a.). These
facilities are repayable on demand and are secured primarily by way of pari-passu first charge on the entire present and future current assets of the Company
and collateral by way of pari-passu first charge on the entire present and future movable assets of the Company.

15.2 The Holding Company has taken working capital loan from banks having interest rate ranging from 7.75 % to 10.23% p.a (March 31, 2024: 6.80 % to
11.85% p.a). These facilities are repayable within 7 - 90 days and are secured primarily by way of pari-passu first charge on the present and future current
assets of the Company and collateral by way of pari-passu first charge on the entire movable assets of the Company.

15.3 The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Holding Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the
Holding Company for the year ended March 31, 2025. For the year ended March 31, 2024, the summary of differences noted in quarterly statements filed by
the Holding Company with banks are as follows:
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15 Borrowings (continued)

As at March 31, 2024

Quarter Particulars Bank name Amount as per  Amount as per Difference
books of quarterly (Refer below
accounts statement Note)

June 30, 2023 Sales Refer note (a) below 3,515.96 3,491.80 24.16

Trade receivables Refer note (a) below 3,125.65 3,248.11 (122.46)
Trade payables Refer note (a) below 325.36 320.37 4.99
Borrowings Refer note (a) below 1,847.77 1,838.80 8.97
September 30, 2023 Sales Refer note (a) below 6,981.85 6,892.68 89.17
Trade receivables Refer note (a) below 3,264.57 3,395.21 (130.64)
Trade payables Refer note (a) below 586.29 314.62 271.67
Borrowings Refer note (a) below 2,169:27 2,146.60 22.67
December 31, 2023 Sales Refer note (a) below 10,485.88 10,471.43 14.45
Trade receivables Refer note (a) below 3,218.71 3,411.14 (192.43)
Trade payables Refer note (a) below 512.87 474.34 38.53
Borrowings Refer note (a) below 725.21 716.90 8.31
March 31, 2024 Sales Refer note (a) below 14,155.85 14,094.16 61.69
Trade receivables Refer note (a) below 3,143.06 3,455.83 (312.77)
Trade payables Refer note (a) below 378.88 373.94 4.94
Borrowings Refer note (a) below 498.31 488.20 10.11

Notes:
a) The Holding Company has submitted quarterly returns to the banks in respect of borrowings taken against the security of current assets. These quarterly

returns are submitted for all quarters to HDFC Bank, Kotak Bank, ICICI Bank, Citi Bank, Standard Chartered Bank and DBS Bank. The quarterly returns
were submitted to Bajaj Finance Limited for the quarters ended June 30, 2023, September 30, 2023 and December 31, 2023.

b) The Holding Company reported the amounts on a provisional basis for the purpose of the said quarterly filing made to the banks and consequently
accounting principles comprising of recognition, measurement and presentation criteria amongst others, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS were
not considered in quarterly returns / statements. Management is of the view that the Holding Company has sufficient unutilised borrowing facilities as per the
terms of arrangement with its lenders which is higher than the excess balance disclosed in the quarterly returns / statements as tabulated above.

¢) The Holding Company has subsequently submitted revised returns to the aforesaid banks except Bajaj Finance Limited.

15.4 The summary of differences noted in quarterly statements filed by one of the subsidiary, Fusion Foods & Catering Private Limited with banks are as follows:

As at March 31,2024

Quarter Particulars Bank name Amount as per  Amount as per Difference
books of quarterly (Refer below
accounts statement Note)

June 30, 2023 Debtors HDFC Bank 272.94 251.46 21.48

Creditors HDFC Bank 155.01 153.01 2.00
Stock HDFC Bank 17.76 14.31 3.45
September 30, 2023 Debtors HDFC Bank 243.59 370.31 (126.72)
Creditors HDFC Bank 140.85 140.41 0.44
Stock HDFC Bank 20.13 17.33 2.80
December 31, 2023 Debtors HDFC Bank 202.71 213.76 (11.05)
Creditors HDFC Bank 103.96 91.96 12.00
Stock HDFC Bank 14.20 14.20 -
Debtors HDFC Bank 15135 136.10 15.25
March 31, 2024 Creditors HDFC Bank 67.90 62.28 5.62
Stock HDFC Bank 13.04 13.00 0.04
Note:

The discrepancy in respect of debtors and creditors for the period were attributable to the subsidiary’s financial closure process being not fully completed at
the time of filing quarterly statements with banks.
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15 Borrowings (continued)

15.5 In respect of other subsidiaries, quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the subsidiaries with banks and financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

15.6 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars Borrowings Lease Liabilities
As at April 1,2023 H245:H251 1,765.38 433.25
Cash inflows 10,239.62 -
New leases - 246.81
Interest 141.53 50.87
Cash outflows (11,617.52) (213.00)
As at March 31, 2024 529.01 517.93
Cash inflows 5,335.41 -
New leases - 203.64
Interest 44.42 57.84
Cash outflows (5,424.50) (239.95)
As at March 31, 2025 484.34 539.46

15.7 The Group's exposure to credit, currency and liquidity risk related to borrowings is disclosed in Note 41.

As at As at
I
16 Leudepuyables March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 247.29 137.23
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 647.72 655.38
895.01 792.61

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025 Outstanding for the following periods from the due date of payment

X Unbilled Notdue Less than 1-2 2-3years More than3 Total
Particulars dues 1 year years years
Undisputed outstanding dues of MSMEs 3535 27.38 17573 5.22 3.41 0.20 247.29
Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 296.94 113.50 117.14 97.46 19.74 2.94 647.72
Disputed outstanding dues of MSMEs - - - - - - -
Disputed outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs - - - S “ ” _
Total 332.29 140.88 292.87 102.68 23.15 3.14 895.01

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024

. Unbilled Not due Less than 1-2 2-3years More than 3 Total

Particulars
dues 1 year years years

Undisputed outstanding dues of MSMEs 56.29 50.23 27.74 1.42 0.22 0.32 136.22
Undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 117.90 156.78 198.14 7.69 2.07 2.27 484.85
Disputed outstanding dues of MSMEs - - 1.02 - - - 1.02
Disputed outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs - - 90.67 69.96 - 9.89 170.52
Total 174.19 207.01 317.57 79.07 2.29 12.48 792.61

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 to 60 day term.
These details have been provided based on the information available with the Group in respect of the registration status of its vendors/suppliers. All trades payables

are 'current'.
The Group's exposure to credit, currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 41.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>
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Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024

17 Other financial liabilities
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(j))

Capital creditors - - 7.92 24.02
Employee benefits payable - - 1,503.35 1,528.48
Bonus payable - - 325.84 345.42
Director fee payable - - 15.15 6.00
Payable to selling shareholders - - - 1.07
Other payables - - 7.06 4.74
(At Fair Value through Profit or Loss)
Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries” 131.15 311.63 141.00 918.22
131.15 311.63 2,000.12 2,827.95

The Group's exposure to credit, currency and liquidity risk related to other financial liabilities is disclosed in Note 41.

# This represents liability payable to the promoters of acquired subsidiaries - Athena BPO Private Limited (March 31, 2025: INR 272.15 Million; March 31,
2024: INR. 598.94 Million) and Denave India Private Limited (March 31, 2025: INR Nil March 31, 2024: INR 630.91 Million) under the terms of the
relevant share purchase agreement for acquisition of future purchase of shares.

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
18 Provisions March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31,2024
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2 (1) and Note 2.2(r))
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer Note 33) 358.28 277.87 124.84 140.10
Provision for gratuity - reimbursement employees (refer Note 33) 301.79 156.83 168.33 230.75
Provision for compensated absences 71.24 62.15 29.60 27.66
731.31 496.85 322.77 398.51
Other provisions
Provision for tax litigations* - - 2.80 2.80
731.31 496.85 325.57 401.31
*The table gives the information about movement of the provisions:
Provision for litigations
At the beginning of the year 2.80 3.34
Created during the year - -
Utilised during the year - (0.54)
At the end of the year 2.80 2.80
19 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 34.32 57.42
Contract liabilities 62.25 24.28
Statutory dues and related liabilities * 816.78 720.87
Deferred income - 0.41
Liability towards corporate social responsibility ('CSR') 2.60 -
Other payables 32.41 10.12
Total Other current liabilities 948.36 813.10

* Statutory dues and related liabilities include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance, Professional Tax, Tax Deducted at Source, Goods and Services
Tax and Labour Welfare Fund, amongst others.
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20

21

Revenue from contracts with customers
(See accounting policy in Note 2.2(g))

Sale of products (A)
Sale of services (B)

Total Revenue from contracts with customers (A + B)

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:

Revenue by geography

India

Outside India

Total Revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time
Service transferred at a point in time
Service transferred over a period of time
Total

Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of products/services with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price

Discounts

Total

Contract balances
Trade receivables (refer Note 10)
Contract assets (Unbilled revenue) (refer Note 9)

Contract Liabilities

Advance from customers (refer Note 19)
Contract liabilities (refer Note 19)
Deferred income (refer Note 19)

Also refer Note 39.

Other income

Interest income under the effective interest method on:

- bank deposits

- others

Interest income on income tax refund

Fair value change in liabilities payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries
Fair value gain on financial Assets at Fair value through profit or loss
Gain on sale of current investments (net)

Profit on sale of property, Plant and Equipment (Net)

Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back

Exchange differences (Net)

Other non-operating income

Bad debts recovered

<this space has been intentionally left blank>

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

39.71 46.54
27,320.92 24,397.09
27,360.63 24,443.63
25,686.21 23,295.31

1,674.42 1,148.32
27,360.63 24,443.63
39.71 46.54

642.67 212.35
26,678.25 24,184.74
27,360.63 24,443.63
27,380.83 24,460.22
(20.20) (16.59)
27,360.63 24,443.63
6,081.88 5,039.00
746.64 716.98

3432 81.70

62.25 24.28

- 0.41

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
159.07 119.15

5.68 9.74

12.65 3.61

39.47 -

59.41 31.34

7.92 -
- 6.41

53.90 52.91

2.40 1.63

15.72 11.31

0.45 -
356.67 236.10
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For the year ended For the year ended

22 Cost of materials consumed March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 13.04 17.68
Add: Purchases during the year 920.78 978.89
Less: Inventory at the end of the year (13.53) (21.63)

920.29 974.94

23 Purchase of traded goods

Purchase of traded goods 38.70 44.30
38.70 44.30

24 Changes in inventories of Finished goods and Stock-in-trade
Finished goods
Closing stock - 10.08
Opening stock - 12.24
Stock-in-trade
Closing stock 62.16 37.20
Opening stock 14.28 35.42

(47.88) 0.38

25 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 18,452.95 16,272.38
Contribution to provident and other fund (refer Note 33) 1,760.00 1,605.29
Gratuity expense (refer Note 33) 64.93 82.39
Staff welfare expenses 96.01 95.85
Employee stock option expenses (refer Note 35) 28.80 100.60

20,402.69 18,156.51
26 Finance costs
(see accounting policy in note 2.2(v))
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- Interest on borrowings 44.42 141.53
- Interest on lease liabilities (refer Note 34) 57.84 50.87
Interest on shortfall in payment of income tax - 0.18
Other borrowing costs 1.22 0.25
103.48 192.83
27 Depreciation and amortization expense
(see accounting policy in note 2.2(d) and (e))
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (refer Note 3) 186.29 244.11
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer Note 34) 195.48 190.67
Amortization of Intangible assets (refer Note 3C) 89.57 104.82
471.34 539.60

Q-
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For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
28 Impairment losses
Impairment losses on contract assets 21.11 2224
Impairment loss on doubtful trade receivables 95.77 17.65
Impairment loss on doubtful advances 14.54 28.42
Impairment on loans to employees - 1.30
131.42 69.61
29 Fair value change in liabilities payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries
Fair value change in liabilities payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries - 105.92
- 105.92
30 Other expenses
Site maintenance expenses 1,025.23 762.64
Outsourced manpower 828.25 965.41
Cleaning materials and consumables 289.60 236.21
License fee 95.61 78.75
Verification expenses 127.48 124.40
Freight and forwarding charges 421.06 236.78
Canteen materials 49.33 59.01
Travelling and conveyance 290.20 259.41
Rent 82.70 77.04
Legal and professional fees 152.68 124.79
Training expenses 36.94 53.66
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 6.43 8.00
Repairs and maintenance - others 97.07 104.41
Communication expenses 83.53 80.59
Printing and stationery 32.31 29.40
Consumption of stores and spares 16.05 11.01
Intangible asset under development written off - 0.29
Bad debts written off 9.04 12.34
Insurance 41.03 22.08
Power and fuel 107.54 96.64
Computer hire charges 8.97 11.79
Postage and courier charges 136.52 116.73
Provision for diminution in value of inventories - 2.08
Non-executive Director's remuneration 8.10 15.30
Payment to auditors 15.86 20.09
Rates and taxes 9.83 15.60
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility (CSR) 22.41 21.56
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 3.05 1.61
Miscellaneous expenses 253.15 202.19
4,249.97 3,749.81
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31 Income tax

(See accounting policy in note 2.2(m))

31A Amounts recorded in Balance sheet

Non-current tax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision for tax)

Current tax liabilities (Net)

Provision for income taxes (net of advance income taxes)

31B Amounts recorded in the statement of profit and loss
The major components of income tax expense for the respective periods are:
Current income tax:
Current tax
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax charge / (credit)

Total tax expense recorded in the statement of profit or loss

31C Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income tax effect on Remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset)

31D Reconciliation of effective tax rate / tax expense
Profit before tax

Enacted tax rate in India
Profit before tax multiplied by enacted tax rate

Effects of:

Effect of Ind As Adjustments

Additional deduction under Income tax based on employment generation

Adjustment in respect of tax related to earlier years

Fair value change in Liability payable to promoters of acquired subsidiaries

Income from Deemed Dividend u/s 2(22)(e ) - Loan by a subsidiary to another fellow subsidiary
Non-deductible expenses

Contribution to CSR

Others

Net effective income tax

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deffered tax relating to items recognised in OCI during the year
Tax effect on re-measurement gains and (losses) on defined benefit obligations (net)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
913.92 773.28
913.92 773.28
78.46 79.77
78.46 79.71
For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

333.71 206.75
1.57 6.75
(77.76) (30.31)
257.52 183.19
(3.85) (3.72)
(3.85) (3.72)
1,447.29 845.83
25.17% 25.17%
364.25 212.88
5.27 (1.48)
(69.48) (91.02)
(0.18) 6.76
(11.04) 12.30
= (10.07)

s 5.43
2.04 3.89
(33.34) 44.50
257.52 183.19
(3.85) (3.72)
(3.85) (3.72)

Deferred tax liabilities has not been created for tax on potential dividend from undistributed profits in subsidiaries, as the Group currently intends to retain such reserves for

the foreseeable future.

* One of the subsidiaries have profits accruing or arising outside India and hence taxed at different rates based on the respective jurisdiction.

31E Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Reconciliation of Deferred tax assets / liabilities

Opening balance Deferred tax asset / (liabilities) 474.46 (117.03) (157.51)
Tax (expense) / credit during the year recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 60.50 21.11 40.48
Tax (expense) / income during the year recognised in OCI (3.85) = g
Closing balance (net) 531.11 (96.08) (117.03)
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31E

32

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities (Continued)

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities
For the year ended March 31, 2025

Acquired in Recognised in
Particulars April 1, 2024 business statement of Recognised in OCI March 31, 2025
combination profit and loss
Deferred tax assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 71.59 - (14.66) - 56.93
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 43.34 - 40.99 - 84.33
Provision for doubtful assets 18.57 - 76.10 - 94.67
Provision for employee benefits 147.01 - (8.52) (3.85) 138.48
Provision for litigation %
Expenses allowable on payment basis 101.50 - (57.29) - 44.21
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income* 60.81 - 20.42 - 81.23
Others 31.63 - (0.37) - 31.26
Total 474.46 - 56.65 (3.85) 531.11
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets 1.61 - 1.61 - -
Intangible assets arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 115.42 - 19.34 - 96.08
Total 117.03 - 21.11 - 96.08
For the year ended March 31, 2024 0.00
Acquired in Recognised in
Particulars April 1, 2023 business statement of Recognised in OCI March 31, 2024
combination profit and loss
Deferred tax assets
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 71.88 - 2.52 - 71.59
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 46.47 - (5.18) - 43.34
Provision for doubtful assets 12.86 - 5.76 - 18.57
Provision for employee benefits 154.78 - (0.26) (3.72) 147.01
Expenses allowable on payment basis 126.98 - (25.48) - 101.50
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income* 36.14 - 24.77 - 60.81
Others 38.96 - (12.03) - 31.63
Total 488.07 - (9.89) (3.72) 474.46
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assets - - - (1.61) - 1.61
Intangible assets arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 157.50 - 42.08 - 115.42
Total 157.50 - 40.47 - 117.03

* One of the subsidiary, Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited ('Global') has been awarded multiple airport contracts for ground handling services/business during
the Financial Year 2021-22, and the operations in those airports have commenced from the Financial Year 2022-23. As per the projections, it is probable that subsidary will
earn sufficient taxable profit in future periods to set-off the carry forward losses and corresponding reversal of deferred tax assets relating to such losses. Based on the given
facts, the subsidiary has recognized and carried deferred tax assets on the losses in the books of accounts.

Earnings per equity share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of Equity

shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

Fartioelary March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of Holding Company 1,188.00 679.46
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Holding Company adjusted for the effect of dilution 1,188.00 679.46
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS 6,69,49,074 5,98,00,883
Effect of dilution:
Effect of share options exercised 1,63,239 3,43,298
Weighted-average number of equity shares (diluted) for the year (refer note below) 6,71,12,313 6,01,44,181
Earning per share of INR 10 each
- Basic 17.74 11.36
- Diluted 17.70 11.30
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33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits":

(i) Defined contribution plan:

The Group provident fund is a defined contribution plan. An amount of INR 1760 million being contribution made to recognised provident fund is recognised as an expense for
the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: INR 1605.29 million) and included under Employee benefits expense (Note 25) in the Statement of Profit and loss.

(ii) Defined benefit plans:
A. Gratuity (Regular)

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan ("Plan") in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years
of continuous service, to gratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six

months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned.

Some of the entities in the Group makes annual contributions to gratuity funds established as trusts or insurance companies.

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance

sheet for the gratuity plan:

(a) The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 547.11 472.67
Fair value of plan assets (63.99) (54.70)
Net liability 483.12 417.97
Current 124.84 140.10
Non-current 358.28 277.87

(b) The amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Eaxtlonlars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service cost:

Current service cost 87.80 52.43
Net interest cost:

Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 31.95 31.12

Interest income on loan assets (1.42) (1.16)
Total included in Employee benefits expense (refer Note 25) 118.34 82.39

(c) Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations
Due to change in financial assumptions 28.10 (13.30)
Due to change in demographic assumption 0.06 0.14
Due to experience adjustments (20.19) 24.33
Return on plan assets 0.74 (0.72)
Total 8.72 10.45
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33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits" (continued)

(d) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:

Particulars As at| As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 472.67 466.99
Defined benefit obligation for acquisition during the year - -
Current service cost 87.80 52.43
Interest cost 32.00 31.47
Actuarial losses/(gains) - -
Due to change in financial assumptions 36.45 13,12
Due to change in demographic assumption 0.06 (0.15)
Due to experience adjustments (36.34) (24.70)
Benefit paid (45.54) (66.49)
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligation 547.11 472.67
(e) The changes in the present value of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening plan assets 54.70 48.06
Expected return on plan assets 4.02 3.57
Contributions 30.91 61.74
Benefits paid and charges deducted (26.25) (57.61)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets 0.60 (1.06)
Closing balance of the present value of plan assets 63.99 54.70
(f) Reconciliation of net liability:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net liability as at the beginning of the year 417.97 418.93
Defined benefit obligation for acquisition during the year -
Defined benefit cost included in the statement of profit and loss 117.24 82.39
Defined benefit cost included in other comprehensive income (0.96) (10.45)
Transfer Out -
Benefit paid (51.13) (72.90)
Net liability at the end of the year 483.12 417.97
(g) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
Particulars Ayt A
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Discount rate 6.93% -7.25% 6.93% - 7.25%)
2) Salary growth rate 3.00% to 13.59% 3.00% to 13.59%
%) Airition s 10.00% - 90.00% at all| 10.00% - 90.00% at all
ages ages
4) Retirement age 58 58
) Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14
5) Maturity tables Ultimate Table v )

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. The
estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the
employment market. Based on the experience of the previous years, the Group expects to contribute INR 163.45 million to the gratuity fund during the next year. However, the
actual contribution by the Group will be based in the actuarial valuation report received from the insurance Group.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits" (continued)

(h) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Change Obligation Change Obligation
(i) Discount rate +0.5% 397.37 +0.5% 405.92
-0.5% 407.29 -0.5% 417.78
(ii) Salary growth rate +0.5% 408.71 +0.5% 418.79
-0.5% 395.97 -0.5% 404.90

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation from one

another.

(i) Expected cashflows based on past service liability:

Particulars As at shseat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Year 1 175.66 163.45
Year 2 122.37 111.74
Year 3 86.74 78.73
Year 4 66.49 56.86
Year 5 51.13 42.17
More than 5 years 102.52 81.19
(j) The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

i As at| As at
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment details

Others 63.99 54.70
Total 63.99 54.70

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation for the year ended March 31, 2025 is 2.9 years (March 31, 2024 is 2.9 years).

B. Gratuity (reimbursement from customers)

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan ("Plan") in India, governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years
of continuous service, to gratuity payable on termination of his employment at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six
months, based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. The Group has recognised gratuity liability and reimbursement right for its employees in accordance
with Ind AS 19. The defined benefit plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and salary risk.

The following table summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance

sheet for the gratuity plan:

(a) Net defined benefit liability:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 470.12 387.58
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net liability 470.12 387.58
Current 168.33 230.75
Non-current 301.79 156.83
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33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits" (continued):

(b) Net benefit cost:

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current service cost 69.54 70.58

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 25.51 23.36

Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (5.77) (53.57)

Net benefit cost 89.29 40.37

Note:

The employee benefits expenses towards gratuity and related reimbursement right for associate employees for the year ended March 31, 2025 INR 89.29 million [March 31, 2024:

INR 40.37 million] have been netted off in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 387.58 34475
Current service cost 69.54 70.58
Interest cost 2551 23.36
Actuarial losses/(gains) 0.42
Due to change in financial assumptions 8.22 (3.91)
Transfer In 33,23 33.26
Due to change in demographic assumption (4.48) (4.85)
Due to experience adjustments (9.50) (44.81)
Benefit paid (39.98) (31.22)
Closing balance of the present value of defined benefit obligation 470.12 387.58
(d) The changes in the present value of plan assets representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof are as follows:
Particulars As at| As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening plan assets
Expected return on plan assets

5) Maturity tables

Contributions 39.98 31.22
Benefits paid and charges deducted (39.98) (31.22)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - -
Closing balance of the present value of plan assets - -
(e) Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance Sheet date:

. As at As at
— March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1) Discount rate 6.94% 6.94%
2) Salary growth rate 6.12% 6.12%
3) Attrition rate 41.37% at all ages 41.37% at all ages
4) Retirement age 58 58

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate Table

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in

the employment market.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits" (continued):

(f) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Change Obligation Change Obligation
(i) Discount rate +0.5% 383.55 +0.5% 338.53
-0.5% 391.66 -0.5% 347.85
(ii) Salary growth rate +0.5% 392.59 +0.5% 348.54
-0.5% 382.60 -0.5% 337.82

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation from one

another.

(g) Expected cashflows based on past service liability:

Particulars A Aaint
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Year 1 178.99 141.87
Year 2 122.61 99.93
Year 3 83.35 68.33
Year 4 5711 50.73
Year 5 38.21 35.29
More than 5 years 52.96 51.41

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 2.7 years (March 31, 2024: 2.7 years).
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34 Leases
The Group has lease contracts for building used in its operations. Leases of building generally have lease terms between 2 - 6 years, vehicles have lease terms of 1 -
3 years and furniture and fittings between 1-2 years (more than 12 months). The Group also has certain leases of building, machinery, furniture and fittings with
lease term less than 12 months where it applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.Refer Note 30 for

payment made towards short-term lease.
Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.

(i) Right-of-use assets

Particulars Buildings Vehicles Total

As on April 1, 2023 402.08 0.01 402.09
Additions 265.73 - 265.73
Deletions (16.43) 0.01) (16.44)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (190.67) - (190.67)
Other Ind AS Adjustments (0.42) - (0.42)
As on March 31, 2024 460.29 - 460.29
Additions 24454 - 244.54
Deletions (26.61) - (26.61)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (195.48) - (195.48)
Foreign exchange fluctuation/ adjustments 2.31 - 2.31
Other Ind AS Adjustments 0.38 - 0.38
As on March 31, 2025 485.43 - 485.43

(ii) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under financial liabilities) and the movements of Lease liabilities:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As at beginning of the year 517.93 433.25
Additions 235.19 255.62
Acquisition of subsidiary - -
Deletions (31.55) (8.81)
Interest on lease liabilities (refer Note 27) 57.84 50.87
Payments (239.95) (213.00)
As at end of the year 539.46 517.93
Current 183.01 192.70
Non-Current 356.45 325.23

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination options that are
not included in the lease term for the Group:

March 31, 2025 Within five years ~ More than five years Total
Extension options expected not to be exercised 8.48 - 8.48
Termination options expected to be exercised 143.42 2526 168.68
March 31, 2024 Within five years = More than five years Total
Extension options expected not to be exercised 5.96 3.92 9.88
Termination options expected to be exercised 58.42 - 58.42

Some property leases contain extension options exercisable by the Group up to one year before the end of the non-cancellable contract period. Where practicable,
the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the lessors. The Group assesses at the lease commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The Group reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant changes in circumstances within its control.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company
does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that eventually be received or settled.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 41 (Financial risk management). The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is ranging between
8.5% to 11%, with maturity between 2023-2028.

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 195.48 190.68
Interest expense on lease liabilities 57.84 50.87
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 82.70 77.04
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss : ; 336.02 318.59

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 239.95 million for the year ended March 31, 2025 (INR 213 million for the year ended March 31, 2024).
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35 Share-based payments

a) Employee Share-option Plan - 2019
On April 17, 2019, 'Updater Employee Stock Option Plan' 2019 ("ESOP 2019") was approved by the Board of Directors and was also approved in the Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company. The purpose of the ESOP 2019 is to reward the certain employees for their association, dedication
and contribution to the goals of the Company. The options issued under the plan has a term of 1-3 years as provided in the stock grant agreement and vest based
on the terms of individual grants. When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share.

Tranche I (A)
The Holding Company has granted certain options during the previous year to the employees based on past performance of such employees and vesting condition
being continued employment with the Holding Company as on date of vesting. (April 17, 2020)

Tranche I (B), IT and III

The Holding Company has granted certain options during the previous year with future performance of the Company as criteria which has been defined based on
a matrix as per the ESOP 2019 (for Tranche I (B), II and III). During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has modified the vesting conditions (other than
market condition) stipulated with respect to the options granted already pursuant to the Updater Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 [25-Sep-2020 & 25-Sep-2021]
in a manner which is beneficial to employees. The performance criteria stipulated in the grant letter issued to the employees was revised according to the actual
performance achieved for the financial years 2019-20 and 2020-21 and consequently, the options granted to the eligible employees are vested with immediate
effect. Accordingly, the ESOP reserve is created based on the revised plan.

A. Details of ESOP 2019

Name of the scheme - ESOP 2019 Tranche -1(A) | Tranche -1 (B) Tranche - 11 Tranche - 11T
Date of grant April 17,2019 April 17,2019 October 18,2019 January 10, 2020
Number granted 4,06,772 521,235 1,44,788 77,220
Exercise price (in INR) 10.00 111.00 111.00 111.00
Vesting period 1 year 1 -3 years 1 -3 years 1 -3 years
Vesting condition 100% on April 17, 25% on September| 25% on September 30,  25% on September 30,
2020 30,2020 2020 2020
25% on September| 25% on September 30,  25% on September 30,
30,2021 2021 2021
50% on September| 50% on September 30,  50% on September 30,
30,2022 2022 2022

B. Movement in the options granted to employees
Particulars

Weighted average exercise price
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of options
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 6,62,563 - 48.99
Options granted during the year - - - -
Options exercised during the year - (6,62,563) - (48.99)

Options expired during the year = = -
Outstanding at the end of the year - - = _
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

C. Fair value of options granted
The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exercise price 10to 111 10to 111
Expected volatility 20% 20%
Expected dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
Risk free interest rates 7.40% 7.40%
Expected life of the option 1 -3 years 1 -3 years
Weighted average share price 93 93
Fair value of the option 83.71 83.71

Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historical volatility of the Company’s share price, particularly over the historical period commensurate
with the expected term. The expected term of the instruments has been based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour.

As on the grant date, fair value of the option is INR 83.71 and weighted average share price is INR 93.
Service and non-market performance conditions attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value.
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35 Share-based payments (continued)
b) (I) Employee Share-option Plan - 2022

The shareholders had approved two Employee Stock Option Schemes "Updater Employee Stock Option Plan 2022" and "Updater Employee Stock Option Plan
2022 - Second" (“ESOP 2022” or “Plan”) on December 3, 2022, and March 4, 2023, respectively. The primary objective of the above two schemes is to reward
certain employees of Holding Company and its subsidiaries for their association, dedication and contribution to the goals of the Holding Company. Under the
Scheme, 18,33,000 stock options were granted to the said employees at an exercise price of INR 300 in multiple tranches. The options issued under the plan has a
term of 1-4 years as provided in the stock options grant letter and vest based on the terms of individual grants. When exercisable, each option is convertible into
one equity share.

The Holding Company has granted certain options during the year with future performance of the Holding Company as criteria which has been defined based on
a matrix as per the ESOP 2022 scheme. The performance criteria stipulated in the grant letter issued to the employees was based on pre determined EBITDA
Target which will be communicated to employees either in the March month of the previous financial year or at the beginning of the respective financial year.
Also, the plan has a rollover to next financial year wherein catch up opportunity of 1 more year is available in case the EBITDA Target is not achieved for a
particular financial year. Further, management has considered future projections and related estimates in determining the number of options expected to be vested
and has accounted for the ESOP reserve accordingly.

The expense recognised (net of reversal) for share options during the year ended March 31, 2025 is INR 8.94 million [March 31, 2024: INR 58.28 million].
There are no cancellations or modifications to the awards during the year ended March 31, 2025.

A. Details of ESOP 2022
Name of the scheme - ESOP 2022

Tenure based Performance based

Tranche -T I Tranche -T 11 Tranche -E I Tranche -E 11
Date of grant December 16, 2022 March 04, 2023 December 16, 2022 March 04, 2023
Number granted 3,90,508 4,76,000 3,90,492 4,76,000
Exercise price (in INR) per share 300 300 300 300

Vesting period
Method of settlement
Method of accounting
Vesting condition
Method of valuation

4 Years Graded Vesting

Service condition - Tenure based
Black Scholes model

Equity-Settled
Fair Value

4 Years Graded Vesting

Equity-Settled
Fair Value

Performance condition - EBITDA linked

Black Scholes model

B. Movement in the options granted to employees

Particulars

Number of options

Weighted average exercise price

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 14,51,194 17,33,000 300 300
Options granted during the year - s = 5
Options exercised during the year (4875) - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options expired during the year (1,28,626) -2,81,806 300 300
Outstanding at the end of the year 13,17,693 14,51,194 300 300
Exercisable at the end of the year - = - -
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35

Share-based payments (continued)

C. Fair value of options granted

The Black-scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exercise price per share (INR) 300 300
Expected volatility 38.16% - 41.50% 38.16% - 41.50%
Expected dividend yield (%) 0% 0%,
Risk free interest rates 7.43% 7.43%
Expected life of the option

-As on grant date :16-12-2022 2 -3.5 Years 2-3.5 Years
-As on grant date :04-03-2023 1.79 - 3.33 Years 1.79 - 3.33 Years
Weighted average share price 301.89 301.89
Wrighted average remaining contractual life as at year-end 0.31 years 1.31 years

Fair value of the option as on grant date

-As on grant date: December 16, 2023 INR 82.59 - INR 110.74| INR 82.59 -INR 110.74
-As on grant date: March 4, 2023 INR 83.32-INR 116.61| INR 83.32-INR 116.61

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not

necessarily be the actual outcome.

The exercise period would commence from the date of vesting and will expire on completion of 2 (Two) years from the date of respective vesting or such other
period as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, from time to time.

Date of grant Option details | No of shares| Fair value Value of the| Weighted average Weighted average
per share options value price
December 16,2023 |Tranche -T I 3,90,508 293.45 114.59 0.23 66.12
March 4, 2023 Tranche -T II 4,76,000 308.80 146.99 0.27 84.82
December 16,2023 |Tranche -E 1 3,90,492 293.45 114.59 0.23 66.12
March 4, 2023 Tranche -E II 4,76,000 308.80 146.99 0.27 84.82
17,33,000 523.16 1.00 301.89

A2. Details of ESOP 2022 - Second

Name of the scheme - ESOP 2022

Tenure based Tranche -T 0 (A)

Listing based Tranche -IPO (A)

Date of grant March 04, 2023 March 04, 2023
Number granted 50,000 50,000
Exercise price (in INR) per share 300 300
Vesting period 1 Year 1- 2 Years
Method of settlement Equity-settled Equity-settled
Method of accounting Fair value Fair value
Vesting condition* Service condition - Tenure based Performance condition - IPO linked
Method of valuation Black Scholes model Black Scholes model
B2. Movement in the options granted to employees
Particulars Number of options Weighted average exercise price

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,000 1,00,000 300 300
Options granted during the year
Options exercised during the year - - - -
Options forfeited during the year - - - -
Options expired during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,00,000 1,00,000 300 300
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -
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Share-based payments (continued)

C. Fair value of options granted

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exercise price per share (INR) 300 300
Expected volatility 41.50% 41.50%
Expected dividend yield (%) 0.00% 0.00%
Risk free interest rates 7.43% 7.43%
Expected life of the option

- As on grant date: December 16, 2023 2-3.5 Years 2-3.5 Years

- Weighted average remaining contractual life as at year-end 1.79 - 3.33 Years 1.79 - 3.33 Years
- For options granted on: March 4, 2023 308.80 308.80
Weighted average share price 0.67 years 0.67 years
Fair value of the option as on grant date

- As on grant date: March 4, 2023 INR 83.32 INR 83.32

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not

necessarily be the actual outcome.

The exercise period would commence from the date of vesting and will expire on completion of 2 (Two) years from the date of respective vesting or such other

period as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, from time to time.

¢) One of the subsidiary, Denave has granted Employee stock option plan - 2022.

The compensation cost of stock options granted to employees has been accounted by the Company using the fair value method as per Ind AS 102 - Share based

payments.

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share. All the options shall be exercised within the exercise period of 84 months from the date of
vesting by paying in full the stipulated exercise price per share after which any unexercised options will lapse. The expense recognised (net of reversal) for share

options during the year is INR 8.86 million (March 31, 2024: INR 16.11 million)

A. Details of ESOP 2022

Particulars 2022
Date of grant 18-Aug-22
Number granted 7.,47,000

Total 7,47,000

Exercise price (in 3) 1
Vesting period 1-4 years
Year 1 10%
Year 2 15%
Year 3 15%
Year 4 60%
Vesting conditions Service Conditions
Method of settlement Equity
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B. Movement in the options granted to employees

Particulars Number of options

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 13,59,870 14,59,870
Options granted during the year - -
Options exercised during the year -7,12,870 -
Options lapsed during the year -37,500 -1,00,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 6,09,500 13,59,870
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,61,750 7,09,070
Weighted average exercise price per option(I) 1 1
Weighted average remaining life of options (in years) 7.60 6.44

C. Fair value of options granted

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Exercise price 1.00 1.00
Expected volatility 23.29% 23.29%
Expected dividend yield (%) - -
Risk free interest rates 6.52% 6.52%
Expected life of the option 5-9 years 2-10 years
Weighted average share price 140.24 72.54
Fair Value of the Option 139.24 71.54

Expected volatility has been based on an evaluation of the historical volatility of the Company’s share price, particularly over the historical period commensurate
with the expected term. The expected term of the instruments has been based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour.Service and non-
market performance conditions attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value.

d) One of the subsidiary Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited ("Global") has granted the "Global Employee stock option plan, 2022". The shareholders of
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited approved Employee Stock Option Schemes "Global Employee Stock Option Plan 2022" (“ESOP 2022” or
“Plan”) on December 3, 2022. The primary objective of the above schemes is to reward certain employees of the Company and its subsidiaries for their
association, dedication and contribution to the goals of the Company.

Under the Scheme options were granted to the certain employees at an exercise price of INR 10 in multiple tranches. The options issued under the plan has a term
of 1-4 years as provided in the stock options grant letter and vest based on the tenure served by such employees.

The Company has also granted certain options during the year to such employees which vest based on non-market linked performance conditions related to the
Company over a 4 year period, which is stipulated in the respective grant letters issued to the employees. The performance condition for FY 2022-23 (Tranche 1)
has been communicated to respective employees, while for Tranches 2-4, these will be communicated in future. Further, the Plan also provides ability for the
employee to catch up any unvested options for a particular Trache in the next year provided the performance conditions specified for the next financial year are

achieved.
When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share of face value of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.
Management has estimated and also considered future projections in determining the number of options expected to be vested and has accounted for the ESOP

expense accordingly.

The expense recognised (net of reversal) for share options during the year ended March 31, 2024 is Rs. 25.87 Million [March 31 2024: Rs. 25.87 Million]. There
are no cancellations or modifications to the awards during the year ended March 31 2025.

A. Details of ESOP 2022
Name of the scheme - ESOP 2022

Tenure based Tranche -T II (A) Performance based Tranche -E II (B)

Date of grant 04-Mar-23 04-Mar-23
Number granted 1,260 631
Exercise price (in INR) per share 10 10
Vesting period 2.5 years graded vesting 2.5 years graded vesting
Method of settlement Equity-settled Equity-settled
Face value Face value

Method of accounting
Vesting condition
Method of valuation

Performance condition - EBITDA linked
Black Scholes model

Service condition - tenure based
Black Scholes model
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35 Share-based payments (continued)

B. Movement in the options granted to employees

Particulars Number of options Weighted average exercise price
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,891 1,891 10.00 10.00
Options granted during the year
Options exercised during the year - - - s
Options forfeited during the year - - = =
Options expired during the year - = = =
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,891 1,891 10.00 10.00
Exercisable at the end of the year - = - -

C. Fair value of options granted

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following inputs:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Exercise price per share (INR) 10 10
Expected volatility

Expected dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
Risk free interest rates 9.50% 9.50%
Expected life of the option

- As on grant date: December 16, 2022 2.5 Years 2.5 Years
- Weighted average remaining contractual life as at year-end 0.50 years to 2.50 years | 0.50 years to 2.50 years
Weighted average share price 10.00 10.00
Fair value of the option as on grant date

- As on grant date: December 16, 2022 INR 21,000 INR 21,000

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not

necessarily be the actual outcome.
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Capital management
For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current borrowings - 0.34
Current borrowings 484.34 528.67
Lease liabilities 539.46 517.93
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,184.98) (836.16)
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (1,145.76) (671.24)
Less: Bank balances in long term deposits with original maturity more than 12 months (forming part of other (432.00) (2,316.09)
financial assets)
Net Debt (1,738.94) (2,776.55)
Total Equity 9,646.13 8,460.81
Capital and Net Debt 7,907.19 5,684.26
Gearing ratio (21.99%) (48.85%)

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Commitments and contingencies

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a. Contingent liabilities

Income tax (refer below note 1) 467.24 411.16

Professional Tax (refer below note 2) 0.60 6.21

Goods & Services Tax 128.59 104.15

Others (refer below note 3) 3.68 5.98

TDS Liability as per TRACES portal 0.34 -

Provision for bonus for FY 2014-15 pursuant to retrospective amendment to "Payment to Bonus Act" for] 2.78 -

which an interim stay has been granted by the High Court of Madras. (refer below note 7)

b. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of] 27.76 38.61
capital advances

Other commitments (Net of advances) - 1.95

Notes:

1. Income Tax

a) The amount disclosed above primarily represents an Order received by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2023 under section 263 of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 pertaining to Assessment Year 2017-18. As per the said Order, certain adjustments relating to buy-back of shares were added to the total
taxable income amounting to INR 1,420.19 million (tax demand of INR 410.72 million). The Company had filed an appeal with Commissioner of Income Tax
Appeals. Management is confident of a favourable outcome on this matter and hence no provision is considered necessary as on date.
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Commitments and contingencies (continued)

b.In respect of the subsidiaries:

Fusion Foods & Catering Private Limited - During the Year the company has received a notice from Income Tax department under section 274 read with section
270A seeking to tax the consideration received for issue of shares made during financial year 2017-18 and proposing to treat the share premium received as
income under other sources amounting to INR 10.40 million the income tax department has proposed to adjust INR 3.56 million being the refund for AY 2020-21
vide order dated : 27.03.2025.

Wynwy Technologies Private Limited - TDS Liability as per TRACES portal.
ynwy

Matrix Business Services India Private Limited:

(i) The Hon'ble Supreme Court in its ruling dated February 28, 2019 held that the allowances paid to employees are essentially a part of the basic wage, which are
necessarily and ordinarily paid to all employees and are to be treated as wages for the purpose of '(PF)' Provident Fund contribution, with fewer exception to the
same. Based on legal advice, considering that the PF authorities has not commenced any proceedings claiming contribution on allowances for prior or subsequent
periods and considering interpretative challenges surrounding the retrospective application of the judgement and absence of reliable measurement of provisions
relating to earlier periods, this matter has been disclosed as a contingent liability.

(i) The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as
contingent liabilities where applicable, in these financial statements.

2. The Gujarat Panchayats and Municipal Corporations has made claim against the Holding Company for amount INR 5.61 million in respect of professional tax.
The Holding Company has filed the appeal at Court of Professional Tax Officer and Taluka Development Officer at Sanand and deposited the said amount under
Protest and presented same as Balance with Government Authority in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In respect of one of the subsidiaries, Denave, professional tax demand made amounting to INR 0.60 million (against which the subsidiary has paid INR 0.15
million under protest).

3. Includes claim made against the Holding Company in Labour court by ex-employees of the company amounting to INR 3.20 million in respect of reinstatement
of employment with back wages.

4. In respect of one of the subsidiaries, Matrix Business Services Private Limited, Provision for Bonus for financial year 2014-15 pursuant to retrospective
amendment to "Payment of Bonus Act, 1965" for which an interim stay has been granted by the High Court of Madras. - INR 2.78 million.

4. The details of Corporate Guarantees given by the Holding Company on behalf of its subsidiaries is tabulated below:

Name of the Company As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited 265.00 265.00
Fusion Foods and Catering Private Limited 30.00 30.00
295.00 320.00

5. In respect of one of the subsidiaries, Denave, on March 16, 2025, the subsidiary faced a cybersecurity incident wherein the private key for an API usage
account was compromised. This allowed an unknown external party to deploy virtual machines on the cloud platform, resulting in an inorganic usage of Denave's
cloud storage account. Upon discovering the incident on April 2, 2025, Denave reported the incident to CERT-In and cyber police. An external expert was
engaged to perform a detailed Root Cause Analysis (RCA), which concluded that the breach was contained to the cloud environment, with no impact on the core
IT infrastructure or other cloud environments of the subsidiary, and it does not have any impact on the financial systems of Denave. There is no loss of data or
breach of data, and the subsidiary believes they are not responsible for the inorganic usage beyond the purchase orders they issue and has a legal opinion for the
same. Further, Denave maintains insurance cover for such incidents, and accordingly, the insurance company has also been notified. Accordingly, the subsidiary
company believes there will be no financial impact from this incident on the financial statements.
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Segment information

The Managing Director of the Holding Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), he evaluates the Group's performance,
allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Group basis these reportable segments.

The Integrated Facility Management services (‘TFM') primarily comprises of supply of soft services, production support services, engineering services, washroom
and feminine hygiene care solutions, warehouse management, general staffing, institutional catering and other related services to various industries. Business
Support Services ('BSS') primarily comprises of sales enablement services, employee background verification check services, audits and assurance services, airport

ground handling services, mailroom management and niche logistics solutions, business process outsourcing services.

There are no changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss.

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars IFM BSS Total segments | Adjustments & Total
eliminations*
Income
Revenue from operations 18,047.17 9,458.30 27,505.47 (144.84) 27,360.63
Other income 537.52 77.05 614.58 (257.91) 356.67
Total Income 18,584.69 9,535.35 28,120.05 (402.75) 27,717.30
Cost of materials consumed 920.29 - 920.29 - 920.29
Purchase of traded goods 84.40 - 84.40 (45.70) 38.70
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and Stock-in-trade (47.88) - (47.88) - (47.88)
Employee benefits expenses 14,331.67 6,067.20 20,398.87 3.82 20,402.69
Finance costs 70.72 65.10 135.82 (32.34) 103.48
Depreciation and amortization expense 152.42 242.05 394.47 76.87 471.34
Impairment losses 130.42 - 130.42 1.00 131.42
Other expenses 1,764.28 2,584.65 4,348.93 (98.96) 4,249.97
Segment profit 1,178.38 576.36 1,754.73 (307.44) 1,447.29
As at March 31, 2025
Total Assets 13,499.90 4,775.16 18,275.06 (2,399.07) 15,875.99
Total Liabilities 4,506.05 2,288.10 6,794.15 (564.29) 6,229.86
Other information
Capital expenditure - - - - -
Depreciation and amortization expense (152.42) (242.05) (394.47) (76.87) (471.34)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars IFM BSS Total segments | Adjustments & Total
eliminations*
Income
Revenue from operations 16,742.93 8,093.93 24,836.86 (393.23) 24,443.63
Other income 306.20 46.38 352.58 (116.48) 236.10
Total Income 17,049.13 8,140.31 25,189.44 (509.71) 24,679.73
Cost of materials consumed 974.94 - 974.94 - 974.94
Purchase of traded goods 231.19 - 231.19 (186.89) 44.30
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and Stock-in-trade 0.38 - 0.38 - 0.38
Employee benefits expenses 13,141.00 5,017.42 18,158.42 (1.91) 18,156.51
Finance costs 158.73 63.63 22236 (29.53) 192.83
Depreciation and amortization expense 213.03 240.45 453.48 86.12 539.60
Impairment losses 135.81 - 135.82 (66.20) 69.61
Fair value change in liabilities payable to promoters of] 48.86 - 48.86 57.05 105.92
acquired subsidiaries
Other expenses 1,619.54 2,330.57 3,950.11 (200.30) 3,749.81
Segment profit 525.65 488.24 1,013.86 (168.03) 845.83
As at March 31, 2024
Total Assets 13,277.23 4,486.44 17,763.67 (2,415.67) 15,348.00
Total Liabilities 5,325.43 2,198.47 7,523.90 (636.71) 6,887.19
Other information
Capital expenditure - - - - -
Depreciation and amortization expense (213.03) (240.45) (453.48) (86.12) (539.60)
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38 Segment information (continued)
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Information in respect of geographical areas

Revenue by Geography**
India 25,686.21 23,295.31
Outside India 1,674.42 1,148.32

27,360.63 24,443.63

* Ind AS 108 requires disclosure of reconciliations between segment information and respective line item in Consolidated Financial Statements. Inter-segment
transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. There are no other reconciling items, hence, no separate reconciliation has been presented.

** Revenue from no customer of the Group constitute more than 10% of the Total Revenue from operations of the Holding Company in the respective years.

< this space has been intentionally left blank >




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

39 Related party disclosures
(A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Relationship

Name of the related parties

Subsidiary

Entities under Common Control

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Relative of Key Management Personnel

Updater Services Foundation (Section 8§ Company)*

Best Security Services Private Limited

Tangi Facility Solutions Private Limited

Tangirala Infrastructure Development Private Limited

Updater Services Private Limited - Employees Group Gratuity Scheme

Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala, Managing Director

Mr. B Ravishankar, Company Secretary (until February 10, 2024)

Mrs. Sandhya Saravanan, Company Secretary (w.e.f February 10, 2024)
Mr. Balaji Swaminathan, Chief Financial Officer (until December 30, 2023)
Mrs. Radha Ramanujan, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. December 30, 2023)
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani, Independent Director

Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria

Executive Director (until April 30, 2023)

Non-executive Director from w.e.f. May, 01 2023

Mr. Amit Choudhary, Independent Director

Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Balasubramanian, Whole-time Director (until
April 2,2024)

Ms. Jigyasa Sharma (w.e.f. April 2, 2024)

Mrs. Shanthi Tangirala

* The shareholding of this entity is held by the Holding Company and therefore this entity would constitute a subsidiary under the Companies Act, 2013. However,
the Group has determined that the Holding Company does not control the entity since there’s neither any exposure nor any right over any kind of returns from
investee. Hence, basis the requirements of Ind AS 110, the same is not considered a subsidiary for the purpose of this consolidated financial statements.

(B) Transactions during the year

Rent expense
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Ms. Shanthi Tangirala

Services received
Best Security Services Private Limited

Sales / Materials supplied
Best Security Services Private Limited

Managerial remuneration
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria
Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Balasubramanian
Mr. Balaji Swaminathan
Mr. Ravishankar B
Mrs. Sandhya Saravanan, Company Secretary (w.e.f February 10, 2024)

Mrs. Radha Ramanujan, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. December 30, 2023)

Commission to Non-executive directors
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani

Employee stock option expenses
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria
Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Balasubramanian

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
7.67 11.51
7.62 11.44

56.87 48.95
5.39 4.03
19.20 19.20
- 0.68
0.05 8.88
- 522

- 2.75
145 0.24
12.55 3.78
3.00 5.24
- 7.70

- 2.32

< this space has been intentionally left blank >




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

39 Related party disclosures (continued)

(B) Transactions during the year

Director sitting fees
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani
Mr. Amit Choudhary
Ms Sangeetha Sumesh
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria
Ms. Jigyasa Sharma
Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Balasubramanian

Loan received from Key Management Person (KMP)
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala

Loan repaid to Key Management Person (KMP)
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala

Interest Paid
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala

Contribution to gratuity
Updater Services Private Limited - Employees Company Gratuity Scheme

(C) Balance outstanding at the end of the year

Investment in Equity
Updater Services (UDS) Foundation

Security deposits (Asset)
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Ms. Shanthi Tangirala

Trade payable
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Ms. Shanthi Tangirala
Best Security Services Private Limited

Director fee payable
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Mr. Amitabh Jaipuria

Managerial remuneration payable
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala
Mrs. Sandhya Saravanan, Company Secretary (w.e.f February 10, 2024)
Mrs. Radha Ramanujan, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. December 30, 2023)
Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Balasubramanian

Commission payable
Mr. Sunil Rewachand Chandiramani

Trade receivables
Best Security Services Private Limited

(D) Consideration to key managerial personnel during the year

Short-term employee benefits; *

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.35 2.80
1.40 2.45
1.30 2.65
0.75 1.40
0.10 -
0.30 -
6.50 -
6.50 -
0.02 -

- 52.93
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0.10 0.10
- 11.44
- 11.44
- 1.07

0.04 1.14

8.83 481

0.08 -

- 1.05

0.08

0.40 -

0.13 0.10

0.63 0.36
- 0.04

3.90 6.39
& 0.30

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

33.25

50.77

The employee stock compensation expenses for the year ended March 31, 2025 includes charge of INR Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 10.02 million) towards key

managerial personnel respectively.

*The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as these are determined on an actuarial

basis for the Group as a whole.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

The sales to and purchases from related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the period
ended are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through exammmg the financial position of

the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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40 Buy-back of equity shares in subsidiary companies

a) On June 11, 2024 the Board of Directors of Athena BPO Private Limited (‘Athena') had authorized the buy-back of upto 4,783 equity shares for an aggregate
consideration of INR 164.00 million in accordance with Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures Rules), 2014
issued by the Central Government. The transaction was approved by the Shareholders through a special resolution a their Annual General Meeting held on June 14,
2024 The transaction was concluded on June 28, 2024 by buying back 4,783 equity shares for an aggregate consideration of INR 163.99 (per share value of INR
4,783) and the Group paid the relevant taxes amounting to INR 37.57 million on this transaction. The face value of shares amounting to INR 0.48 million has been
reduced from the paid-up share capital. The premium paid on buy-back amounting to INR 125.95 million and the resulting tax amounting to INR 37.57 million has
been adjusted against securities premium to the extent of INR 70.90 million and remaining against the free reserves and an amount equal to face value of shares
bought back has been transferred to capital redemption reserve from free reserves.

b) The Board of Directors of Denave India Private Limited (‘Denave') at their meeting held on September 6, 2024 approved a proposal to buy-back upto 712,870
equity shares for an aggregate consideration not exceeding INR 99.97 million being 20.60% of the total amount of the fully paid equity share capital and free reserves
of the standalone financial statements of Denave as on March 31, 2024 . The shareholders approved the same on September 10, 2024 by way of a special resolution.
A letter of Offer was made to all eligible shareholders. The Company bought-back 712,870 equity shares out of the shares that were tendered by eligible shareholders
and extinguished the equity shares on September 24, 2024. Capital redemption reserve was created to the extent of equity share capital extinguished of INR 0.71
million. The Company has paid buy-back tax of INR 15.52 million under section 115QA of Income-tax Act, 1961 .

During the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of Denave at their meeting held on August 4 , 2023, approved a proposal to buy-back upto
1,070,000 equity shares of Denave, for an aggregate consideration not exceeding INR 123.21 million, being 6% of the total number of equity shares. The
shareholders of Denave approved the same on August 16, 2023, by way of a special resolution. A letter of Offer was made to all eligible shareholders. Denave
bought back 1,070,000 equity shares out of the shares that were tendered by promoters of Denave and extinguished the equity shares on September 15, 2023. Capital
redemption reserve was created to the extent of share capital extinguished INR 1.07 million. General reserve of Denave utilised towards buy-back of equity shares
amounting to INR 7.22 million has been transferred to retained earnings of the Group.
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41 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management
A. Accounting classification and Fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair
value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

March 31,2025 Fair value
Note Carrying Measured at Measured at
amounts FVTPL amortised cost L Liel2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments (current and non-current) * 4 430.77 430.67 0.10 351.44 - 79.23
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans (current and non-current) ** 5 6.51 - 6.51
Other financial assets (non-current) ** 6 256.43 - 256.43
Trade receivables ** 10 6,081.88 - 6,081.88
Cash and cash equivalents ** 11A 1,184.98 o 1,184.98
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
11B 1,145.76 - 1,145.76
above ** 4
Other financial assets (current) ** 6 569.39 - 569.39
Financial Liabilities measured at fair value
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) *** 17 272.15 272.15 - - - 272.15
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings (current and non-current) ** 15 484.34 - 484.34
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) ** 34 539.46 - 539.46
Trade payables ** 16 895.01 - 895.01
Other financial liabilities (current) ** 17 1,859.12 - 1,859.12
March 31, 2024 Fair value
Note Carrying Measured at Measured at
amounts FVTPL amortised cost Leyel1 Level 2 Leveld

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments (current and non-current)* 4 64.42 64.32 0.10 16.32 - 48.00
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans (current and non-current) ** 5 737 - 7.37
Other financial assets (non-current) ** 6 232.69 - 232.69
Trade receivables ** 10 5,039.00 - 5,039.00
Cash and cash equivalents ** 1A 836.16 - 836.16
Bank bal ther than cash and cash equivalent:

ank balances othe quivalents _— 67124 ) 7174
above **
Other financial assets (current) ** 6 2,476.49 - 2,476.49
Financial Liabilities measured at fair value
Other financial liabilities (current and non-current) *** 17 1,229.85 1,229.85 - - - 1,229.85
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Borrowings (current and non-current) ** 15 529.01 - 529.01
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) ** 34 517.93 - 517.93
Trade payables ** 16 792.60 - 792.60
Other financial liabilities (current) ** 17 1,909.73 - 1,909.73

* Inputs used include time of maturity, discount rate, interest rate, conversion terms, volatility and other market conditions.

** The Group has not disclosed the fair values of financial instruments such as Loans, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings, trade payables and certain other financial assets and liabilities, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

#** The Group has used Projected EBITDA of subsidiaries, EBITDA multiples, scenario analysis, Risk free rate, market return as inputs and Monte carlo simulation method for
valuation of liability payable to erstwhile promoters of acquired subsidiaries.

Refer 2.2(j) to the consolidated financial statements.
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B. Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments, which is addressed through measures set out below:
- credit risk (see (B)(ii));

- liquidity risk (see (B) (iii)); and

- market risk (see (B)(iv))

i. Risk management framework

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board of Directors has established the risk
management committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s risk management assessment
and policies and processes are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance
with the same. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Group, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the
direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of
customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The Group is exposed to credit risk from Trade receivables, loans,
cash and bank balances, and other financial assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables are as follows:

Carrying amount

Note 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Loans (current and non-current) 5 6.51 137
Other financial assets (non-current) 6 256.43 232.69
Trade receivables 10 6,081.88 5,039.00
Cash and cash equivalents 11A 1,184.98 836.16
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 11B 1,145.76 671.24
Other financial assets (current) 6 569.39 2,476.49
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41 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

ii. Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The average credit period on sale of services / sale of goods ranges from 1 to 90 days. The customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established policy, procedures and control
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on the individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment and
outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The management believes that unimpaired amounts that are past due are still collectible in full, based on historical payment
behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. The impairment loss at the reporting dates related to customers that have defaulted on their payments to the Group are not
expected to be able to pay their outstanding dues, mainly due to economic circumstances.

Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in the Statement of profit and loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. The Group assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected
credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for Trade receivables based on a age wise provision matrix which is prepared considering
the historical data for collection of receivables.

The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Further, the Group constantly evaluates the quality of Trade receivable and provides
impairment loss on financial assets (trade receivables) based on expected credit loss model.

For movement of loss allowance in trade receivables, refer note 10.

Cash and cash equivalents (including other bank balances)

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with credit worthy banks and financial institutions as at the reporting dates which has been measured on the 12-
month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of the banks and financial institutions are evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low
credit risk.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets primarily consists of non-current bank deposits, security deposits, interest accrued on bank deposits and other receivables. The Group does not expect any loss

from non-performance by these counter-parties.

iii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group's reputation. The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management
of the Group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, including contractual interest.

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Carrying Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years
amounts

Borrowings (current and non-current) 484.34 484.34 - -

Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 539.46 218.33 378.59

Trade payables 895.01 895.01 - -

Other financial liabilities (non-current) 131.15 - 208.00 -

Other financial liabilities (current) 2,000.12 2,000.12 - -

Total 4,050.08 3,597.80 586.59 -

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Carrying Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years
amounts

Borrowings (current and non-current) 529.01 528.67 0.34 -

Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 517.93 192.70 319.31 592

Trade payables 792.60 792.60 - -

Other financial liabilities (non-current) 311.63 - 195.18 116.45

Other financial liabilities (current) 2,827.95 2,827.95 - s

Total 4,979.12 4,341.92 514.83 122.37

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings or fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial

instrument may change as a result of changes in the foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables. The Group is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign
exchange rate risk (currency risk), interest risk and price risk from fluctuation in mutual fund investments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns,

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of

changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). However the net investment in

subsidiaries are in Indian rupees, as a result there is no exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates. Consequently, the Group does not uses derivative financial

instruments, such as foreign exfﬁg,uge«f ard contracts, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of is forecasted cash flows andFrade teceivables.
[
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41 Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

iv. Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk management:

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency (FC) denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting period are as follows :

Particulars Currency As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amount in FC | Amountin INR | Amountin FC | Amount in INR
(million) (million) (million) (million)
Trade receivables USD 1.81 154.76 1.16 96.32
Trade payables USD 0.03 272 0.00 0.19

Sensitivity analysis
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group’s profit before
tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the INR against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the rate used in order to determine the
sensitivity analysis considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes the outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates a increase in
profit or equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the
profit or equity and balance below would be negative.

Particulars Profit before Tax Effect on pre-tax Equity
Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% | Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5%
March 31, 2025
USD (7.60) 7.60 (7.60) (7.60)
March 31, 2024
USD (4.81) 4.81 (4.81) (4.81)
Note:

This is mainly attributable to the exposure of Trade receivable and Trade payable outstanding in the above mentioned currencies to the Group at the end of the reporting period.

(b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on profit before tax Equity, net of tax
Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Increase in rate by 2% (9.69) (30.38) (7.25) (22.73)
Decrease in rate by 2% 9.69 30.38 7.25 22.73

Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management of the Group is as follows.

Nominal amount
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
484.34 529.01

Fixed-rate instrument
Borrowings

(c) Price risk

The Group-is mainly exposed to-the price risk due to-its investment in mutual funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. As
at March 31, 2025, the investments in mutual funds amounts to INR 351.44 million (March 31, 2024: INR 16.32 million). As regards Group's investments in unquoted equity
investments, the management contends that such investments do not expose the Group to price risks. In general, these securities are not held for trading purposes.

Sensitivity analysis:

For every 1% increase in price, profit before tax would be impacted by gain of approximately INR 3.51 million (March 31, 2024: INR 1.63 million). Similarly, for every 1% decrease
in price there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit before tax.
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42 Material partly - owned subsidiaries

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group. The amounts disclosed
for each subsidiary is before inter-company eliminations.

A. Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited

Summarised Balance sheet

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Cash and cash equivalents 0.15 0.32
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 452.81 334.32
Non-current assets 83.19 120.27
Trade payables 101.04 88.07
Provisions 49.08 45.23
Current liabilities excluding trade payables and provisions 107.83 94.28
Borrowings 25.66 13.38
Lease liabilities 38.63 36.46
Equity 249.77 204.14
Summarised Statement of profit and loss
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 1,036.65 709.45
Employee benefits expense 329.07 238.30
Finance costs 5.67 5.84
Depreciation and amortization expense 17.11 13.69
Other expenses 625.90 398.76
Profit before tax 64.19 62.95
Total tax expense 17.35 23.04
Profit for the year 46.84 39.91
Other comprehensive income / (loss) (1.21) (3.20)
Total comprehensive income for the year 45.63 36.71
Attributable to NCI 10.95 8.81

Summarised cash flow statement

For the year ended

For the year ended

Fartionlars March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Operating activities (36.62) (37.25)
Investing activities 42.25 120.57
Financing activities (31.46) (88.50)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (25.83) (5.18)
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42 Material partly - owned subsidiaries (continued)

B. Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited

Summarised Balance Sheet

Particulars b s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 47.56 14.43
Current assets excluding cash and cash equivalents 212.72 157.24
Non-current assets 96.58 119.07
Trade payables 223.66 167.66
Provisions 1.03 0.18
Current liabilities excluding Trade payables and Provisions 44.17 44.63
Borrowings 257.32 236.05
Equity (164.30) (152.30)
Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 475.74 259.35
Employee benefits expense 190.12 182.73
Finance costs 20.72 16.85
Depreciation and amortization expense 1.51 0.95
Other expenses 270.73 170.82
Profit before tax (6.02) (111.30)
Total tax expense 5.99 (24.67)
Profit for the year (12.01) (86.63)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (12.01) (86.63)
Attributable to NCI (9.47) (26.40)

Summarised cash flow statement

For the year ended

For the year ended

i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Operating activities 19.51 (58.63)
Investing activities 13.07 (20.92)
Financing activities 0.55 68.75
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 33.13 (10.80)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year allocated to material non-controlling interests

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Avon Solutions & Logistics Private Limited 10.95 8.81
Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited (9.47) (26.40)

<This space has been intentionally left blank>
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43 Group information

A. Subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries

S.No |Name of the entity Principal activities Relationship Country of % equity interest
incorporation As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
1 Avon Solutions & Logistics Mailroom logistics management  |Subsidiary India 76.00% 76.00%
Private Limited
2 Fusion Foods and Catering Corporate and Industrial catering  |Subsidiary India 99.99% 100.00%
Private Limited management
3 Wynwy Technologies Private Home maintenance and household |Subsidiary India 99.99% 100.00%
Limited services
4 Global Flight Handling Services |Ground service support for airlines |Subsidiary India 83.25% 83.25%
Private Limited
a Global Flight Handling Ground service support for airlines |Step-down subsidiary India 74.00% 74.00%
Services (Pune) Private
b Global Flight Handling Ground service support for airlines |Step-down subsidiary India 74.00% 74.00%
Services (Patna) Private
c Global Flight Handling Ground service support for airlines |Step-down subsidiary India 74.00% 74.00%
Services (Raipur) Private
d Global Flight Handling Ground service support for airlines |Step-down subsidiary India 74.00% 74.00%
Services (Vizag) Private
e Global Flight Handling Ground service support for airlines |Step-down subsidiary India 74.00% 74.00%
Services (Surat) Private
5 Matrix Business Services India  |People, product, and process Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
Private Limited assurance services
6 Washroom Hygiene Concepts Feminine Hygiene Solutions Subsidiary India 99.99% 100.00%
Private Limited
7 Denave India Private Limited Sales enablement and other staffing |Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
services
a |Denave Europe Limited, UK Sales enablement and other staffing | Step-down subsidiary UK 100.00% 100.00%
services
b |Denave (M) SDN BHD, Malaysia|Sales enablement and other staffing [Step-down subsidiary Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%
services
¢ |Denave Korea Limited, Korea Sales enablement and other staffing | Step-down subsidiary Korea 100.00% 100.00%
(refer note (iii) below) services
d |Denave SG Pte Limited, Sales enablement and other staffing | Step-down subsidiary Singapore 100.00% 100.00%
Singapore (refer note (iv) below) |services
e |Denave Poland Sp. Z.0.0., Poland |Sales enablement and other staffing [ Step-down subsidiary Poland 100.00% 100.00%
services
8 Athena BPO Private Limited Business process outsourcing Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
(refer note (v) below)
a Athena Call Centre Services  |Business process outsourcing Step-down subsidiary India 100.00% 100.00%
Private Limited
9 Updater Services (UDS) Licensed under Section 8 of Subsidiary India 99.99% 99.99%
Foundation (refer note (vi) below)|Companies Act, 2013

() Integrated Technical Staffing and Solutions Private Limited (‘ITSS”) has been merged with Wynwy Technologies Private Limited pursuant to Order dated
December 6, 2024 by Regional Director - Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Considering that the merger is in the nature of a common control transaction, the
financial statements of the subsidiary company in respect of the prior periods have been restated from the beginning of the previous year i.e., April 1,
2023 as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 in the books of Wynwy. The same does not have any impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

(i) ~ Stanworth Management Private Limited (SMPL') and Tangy Supplies & Solutions Private Limited (‘TSSPL') have been merged with Updater Services
Limited pursuant to the scheme of Amalgamation of SMPL and TSSPL with the Company, approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT")
vide its Order dated May 8, 2025. Also, refer Note 50.

(iii)  Denave Korea Limited has been incorporated during the year with effect from August 21, 2024.

(iv)  Denave Pte Limited had been amalgamated with Denave SG Pte Limited with effect from May 1, 2023.

(V) During the financial year 2022-23, the Group acquired 57% stake in Athena from the promoters of Athena. As per the Shareholder's Agreement between
the Group and Athena and its erstwhile promoters, the Group has an obligation to purchase the remaining shares held by the promoters of such companies
based on agreed methodology per the Sharehlder's agreement. Consequent to the future purchases, the Group will hold 100% of the equity shares of
Athena. Therefore, the Group has not recognised a non-controlling interest in Athena as the unacquired shares from the promoters of Athena are
recognised as a financial liability in these consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, Athena is considered to be 100% owned by the Group for the
purpose of consolidation. Also, refer Note 17.

(vi)  The shareholding of this entity is held by the Holding Company and therefore this entity would constitute a subsidiary under the Companies Act, 2013.
However, as the Company does not control the entity in accordance with the requirements of IND AS 110, thé-same.js not considered a subsidigey £ :
purpose of these consolidated financial statements.

B. Holding / Promoter Company
Updater Services Limited
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47

48

49

Transfer pricing
Management believes that the Group’s international transactions with related parties continue to be at arm’s length and that the transfer pricing legislation will not
have any impact on these financial statements, particularly on amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Code on wages, 2019 and Code on Social Security, 2020

The Parliament has approved the Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Security, 2020 which govern, and are likely to impact, the contributions by the
Company towards certain employee benefits. The government has released draft rules for these Codes and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are
under active consideration by the concerned Ministry. The effective date of these Codes have not yet been notified and the Company will assess the impact of
these codes as and when they become effective and will provide for the appropriate impact in the financial statements during the period in which, the Code
becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Cyber security incident in Holding Company

On March 11, 2025, the Holding Company detected a cyber security incident when its Office 365 admin account was compromised, prompting immediate action
by the management to suspend the account, investigate the breach, and work with the service provider to restore it. The account was fully restored on March 18,
2025, with enhanced security including password resets, multi-factor authentication, and increased monitoring. Management is of the view that the cyber incident
neither has any financial impact on the Company at present, nor expected to have any financial impact in the future.

Utilisation of IPO proceeeds

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company had completed its Initial Public Offer (IPO") by way of fresh issue of 13,333,333 equity shares of face value
of INR 10 each and an offer for sale of 8,000,000 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each of the Company at an issue price of INR 300 per equity share
aggregating to INR 6,400 million (comprising fresh issue of equity shares of INR 4,000 million and payable to selling shareholders towards offer for sale of INR
2,400 million). The Company allotted 13,333,333 fresh equity shares of INR 10 each at a premium of INR 290 per equity share on September 30, 2023. Details of
utilisation of IPO proceeds are tabulated below:

Objects of the issue Amount as Utilisation up to |Unutilised up to March
proposed in offer] March 31,2025 31,2025
document
Repayment and /or prepayment of certain borrowings availed by the Company 1,330.00 (1,330.00) -
Funding working capital requirements 1,150.00 (1,150.00) -
Pursuing inorganic growth initiatives 800.00 (800.00) -
General corporate purposes 498.70 (497.56) 1.14
Total 3,778.70 (3,777.56) 1.14

Note: In this regard, the unutilised IPO fund balance has been carried forward for utilization in FY 2025-26 in accordance with applicable laws, based on
approval obtained from the Board of Directors.

QOther statutory information
(i)  The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii)  The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.
(iii) None of the entities in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(iv)  The Group has the following balance/transactions with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560
of Companies Act, 1956:

Name of struck-off Company Nature of Transaction Balances Outstanding Relationship with
As at As at|the Struck off company

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Air Mech Engineers Private Limited Trade payables 1.14 .72 None

Bajaj Electronics * Trade payables - - None

Cross Limits Services and Solutions * Trade payables - - None

Pancyber Infotech Private Limited * Trade payables - - None

Airmech Engineers Private Limited * Trade payables - - None

Vijay Sales Private Limited * Trade payables - - None

Knorr -Bremse Systems For CommercialfService provided / materials supplied

Vehicles India Private Limited 0.05 o HNonz

Delhi Public School Private Limited Service provided / materials supplied 0.06 0.06 None

Knorr -Bremse Systems For Commercial .

Vehicles India PrivateyLimite d Trade receivables 0.05 0.05 None

Delhi Public School Private Limited Trade receivables 0.06 0.06 None

Dana India Private Limited Trade receivables 0.94 - None

Heidelberg India Private Limited Trade receivables 0.18 - None

* There are no balances outstanding for these vendors as at period-end date.
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49 Other statutory information (continued)

)
(vi) The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year other than that referred to
in Note 43 to these consolidated financial statements.

(a) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Holding Company advanced loans of INR 19.54 million to its subsidiary, Global Flight Handling Services
Private Limited (‘'GFHSPL') (CIN U74900TN2014PTC097283) on various dates towards its working capital requirements. Subsequently, GFHSPL has
further advanced loans aggregating INR 19.54 million to its subsidiary Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private Limited respectively on various dates
for the purpose of providing funding to these step-down subsidiaries in connection with their pursuit of flight handling services business at the respective
airports operated by these entities during the year. The same has been used by Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited and towards its subsidiary,
Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private Limited for working capital requirements.

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(vif)

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company advanced loans of INR 111.14 million to its subsidiary, Global Flight Handling Services
Private Limited on various dates towards its working capital requirements. Subsequently, GFHSPL had further advanced loans aggregating INR 27.03
million, INR 18.20 million, INR 11.41 million, INR 3.75 million, INR 20.13 million and INR 12.03 million to its subsidiaries namely, Global Flight
Handling Services (Pune) Private Limited, Global Flight Handling Services (Patna) Private Limited, Global Flight Handling Services (Raipur) Private
Limited, Global Flight Handling Services (Vizag) Private Limited and Global Flight Handling Services (Surat) Private Limited respectively on various dates
for the purpose of providing funding to these step-down subsidiaries in connection with their pursuit of flight handling services business at the respective
airports operated by these entities during the year. The balance amount of INR 36.79 million has been used by Global Flight Handling Services Private
Limited towards its working capital requirements.

The Cérripahy / Grbup has complied with the relevant proﬁsions of the Fbreiéﬁ Exch.ang‘cAManag'er'rl'e'nt Aci, 1999 (42 of 1999) and the Conipahies Act,
2013 for the above transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003).

Complete details of the intermediary and ultimate beneficiary is provided below:

Name of the Entity Registered Address CIN Relationship with [Relationship with Avon
Holding Company

Global Flight Handling Services Private Limited |Rayala Towers", Tower II, First U74900TN2014P |Subsidiary Fellow subsidiary

Floor, New No.158 Old No.781, TC097283

Shop No.24A, Anna Salai, Chennai,

Tamilnadu - 600002, India.
Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private|No 101,Amrut Siddhi Apartment,  |U93090PN2021P [Step-subsidiary Subsidiary of Fellow
Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) Lakshmi Park, Behind Bhide TC198665 subsidiary

Hospital, Navi Pune , Maharashtra -

411030, India.
Global Flight Handling Services (Patna) Private|Door No 401, 4th Floor, OP U62200BR2021P [Step-subsidiary Subsidiary of Fellow
Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) Complex P N Mall Road (Patliputra -| TC052021 subsidiary

Kurji Road), Patna , Bihar - 800010,

India.
Global Flight Handling Services (Raipur) Private| OTB Ground Floor, Swami U63040CT2021P |Step-subsidiary Subsidiary of Fellow
Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) Vivekananda Airport, Mana Raipur, |TC012256 subsidiary

Chbhattisgarh - 492015, India.
Global Flight Handling Services (Vizag) Private|First Floor, D.No.1-168, Susarla U62100AP2021P |Step-subsidiary Subsidiary of Fellow
Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) Colony Gopalapatnam, TC118299 subsidiary

Visakhapatnam, Andhra Pradesh -

530027, India.
Global Flight Handling Services (Surat) Private|Cabin No.2, First Floor, Inside U63030GJ2021P |Step-subsidiary Subsidiary of Fellow
Limited (Ultimate Beneficiary) Terminal Building Arrival Hall, ATC|TC126393 subsidiary

Building, Dumas Road, Surat,

Gujarat - 395007, India.

(b) During the year ended March 31, 2025, GFHSPL has received funds of INR 19.54 million (March 31, 2024: INR 111.14 million) from the Holding
Company and INR Nil (March 31, 2024: 10.00 million) from Avon Solutions and Logistics Private Limited on various dates towards its working capital
requirements Subsequently, GFHSPL has further advanced loans aggregating INR 19.54 million [March 31, 2024: INR 29.95 million, INR 21.24 million,
INR 5.86 million, INR 35.06 million and INR 14.57 million to it subsidiaries namely, Global Flight Handling Services (Pune) Private Limited, Global Flight
Handling Services (Patna) Private Limited, Global Flight Handling Services (Raipur) Private Limited, Global Flight Handling Services (Vizag) Private
Limited and Global Flight Handling Services (Surat) Privat Limited respectively] on various dates for the purpose of providing funding to these step-down
subsidiaries in connection with their pursuit of flight handling services business at the respective airports operated by these entities during the year.

(viii) The Group has not entered into any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

(ix)
(x) In accordance with the requirements of Division II - Ind AS Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, disclosure surrounding Registration of charges or
satisfaction with Registrar of Companies, Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company and analytical ratios have been disclosed

only in the standalone financial statements.




Updater Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Millions of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

50 Events after reporting period
Pursuant to the Order dated May 8, 2025 by National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT"), Stanworth Management Private Limited and Tangy Supplies & Solutions
Private Limited were merged with Updater Services Limited with an appointed date of April 1, 2024. Considering that the merger is in the nature of a common
control transaction, the financial statements in respect of the prior periods have been restated from the beginning of the previous year i.e., April 1, 2023 as per the
requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103.
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